AGENDA _

REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION
April 15, 2024
7P.M.

Parchment City Commission
Mayor Robert D. Britigan II1

Vice Mayor Thomas Jordan Commissioner Michael Conner

Commissioner Doug Fooy Commissioner Tammy Cooper

Commissioner Robin Madaras Commissioner Justin Mendoza
Officers

City Manager Nancy R. Stoddard

City Attorney Robert Soltis

City Treasurer/Clerk Shannon Stutz
1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Roll Call

4. Approval of Minutes
From the City Commission Meeting of April 1, 2024

3. Additions/Changes to the Agenda - Approval

6. Citizen Comments — items ON the Agenda
If you wish to comment regarding items ON the agenda, please follow the format below:
e State your name and address for the records
* You are allowed up to 5 minutes for your comments

* Please let us know if you require special accommodations by notifying the Clerk

1



» Reminder: You will be making a statement, without discussion from the
Commission. You are always welcome to make an appointment with the City
Manager to further discuss your comments.

7. Consent Agenda

10.

11.

12.

13.

ltems on the consent agenda will be dealt with one vote by the City Commission
unless a Commissioner requests an item be dealt with individually.

Motion to RECEIVE OR APPROVE as indicated:
i.  Warrant No. 1513 — action
ii. Financial Reports, March 2024 — receive
iii, Investment Report, March 2024 - receive
iv. KABA March 2023 Report — receive
v. Kindleberger Arts Commission Meeting Minutes - March 11, 2024 - receive

Unfinished Business
A. Fire Department Proposals — action

New Business
A. Purchase Agreement for 250 Wilson, Dan Bussema - action

Citizen Comments — Items ON or OFF the Agenda

Persons wishing to comment on items that are on/off the agenda are instructed to
please follow the same format as Citizen Comments for items on the agenda.
Mayor and Commissioner Comments

City Manager Comments

Adjournment — Followed by a Budget Workshop meeting




MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION HELD ON MONDAY, APRIL 1, 2024,
Call to order

Mayor Britigan called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. then led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call.

Present: Mayor Britigan, Commissioners Cooper, Fooy, Jordan, Madaras, and Mendoza. City Manager Stoddard,
City Treasurer/Clerk Stutz.

Absent: Conner.

Moved by Commissioner Madaras, supported by Commissioner Fooy to excuse the absence of Commissioner Conner.
Motion Carried.

Approval of Minutes
Moved by Commissioner Cooper, supported by Commissioner Mendoza to approve the minutes of the March 18, 2024
Regular meeting. Motion Carried.

Additions or changes to the agenda,
None. Moved by Vice Mayor Jordan, supported by Commissioner Madaras to approve the agenda as presented. Motion
Carried.

Citizen Comments — Items ON the Agenda
None.

Consent Agenda
A, Questions by Commissioners were answered regarding specific items. Moved by Commissioner Mendoza,
supported by Commissioner Cooper, to approve the consent agenda items. Motion Carried.

Unfinished Business
None.

New Business :

A.. . Parchment Community Library Summer Reading Kick-Off Request ~ action. Mayor Britigan began by stating the
dates the library is requesting to use part of the lower park. City Manager Stoddard explained further that the hot air
balloon will be inflated and tethered, and that two dates were discussed in the case of inclement weather. She noted that
DPW Superintendent Cahill did not have concerns over damage to the field in question. Some discussion tock place. Moved
by Commissioner Madaras, supported by Commissioner Mendoza, to approve the library’s request as written, upon the
condition that Little League doesn’t have anything scheduled and that the fire department is made aware of the event.
Motion Carried.

B. Urban Wildlife Corridor Agreement — action. Mayor Britigan noted that this agreement is between the City of
Parchment and the Southwest Michigan Planning Commission (SWMPC), City Manager Stoddard introduced Sandy
Bliesener, Parchment resident and member of Envisioning the River. She chronicled the plan for work along the Kalamazoo
River {from Merrill Park to D Avenue), funded by the River Trustees with the plan to fund “environmental restoration”. She
mentioned this “phase 2" includes multiple public meetings, getting feedback, and setting goals and objectives.
Commissioner guestions were answered, though one legal question was not. Moved by Commissioner Madaras, supported
by Commissioner Fooy, to table this matter until the City Attorney can address the question. Mation Carried.

C. Amendment to C-3 General Business District - action. Mayor Britigan referenced the Planning Commission’s
request in the packet. He introduced Kent DeBoer, chair of the Planning Commission. Mr, DeBoer noted that section 10.2
spells out the permitted uses. The PCis requesting to add “artisan trade and/or craft production” subject to several
conditions that are enumerated. This relates specifically to 751 Commaerce, where a new owner will be moving his drum
making business. Discussion took place. Moved by Commissioner Mendoza, supported by Commissioner Cooper to approve
the amendment as written. Roll call vote was as follows:

Ayes:  Britigan, Cooper, Fooy, Jordan, Madaras, Mendoza.

Nays: None.

Absent: Conner.

Abstain: None.




Minutes of the April 1, 2024. City of Parchment Commission Page 2 of 2

Motion Carried 6-0.

D. Amendment te Sign Ordinance — action. Mayoer Britigan handed the floor back to Mr. DeBoer, who explained that
the PC has been poring over the city’s zoning code section by section over the last few years, trying to eliminate
discrepancies and contradictions. He said this section was brought to their attention with the recent YMCA sign, adding that
these changes will now make the sign ordinance consistent and legal. Commissioners had guestions regarding specific
items. Mr. DeBoer suggested that Zening Administrator Harvey may be the best person to answer them. Moved by Vice
Mayor Jordan, supported by Commissioner Madaras to table this item until the time when the Zoning Administrator can
answer the questions. Motion Carried.

E. Budget Presentation, City Manager Steddard = receive. City Manager Stoddard handed out the proposed budget
for FY 2024-25, going over highlights. Mayor Britigan reminded everyone of the work session after next meeting (April 15),
. as well as the public hearing on May 6, and adoption on May 20.

9. Citizen Comments
Larry Edmonds (PHS 1984 grad), along with his wife, Dr. Elizabeth Edmonds, 2820 Arrowwood, came to inform the
commissioners that Kindleberger Park has some uniqué features that make it a great place for athletic training — hills, stairs,
pathways, etc. He has been training young kids agility skills and has used the park for some time, and now his adult son has
a group of young men who will be using the park this way and he wanted to make the commissioners aware. He thanked
them for their time.

10. Mayor and Commissioner Comments
Commissioner Cooper sald she was excited about the Urban Wildlife Corridor grant, then expressed her support for
bringing basketball courts back to Kindleberger Park.

Commissioner Madaras mentioned that going through the Planning Commission’s signage packet reminded her of how
much work the PC puts in for our cammunity. She thanked them and wanted to acknowledge their efforts.

Mayor Britigan agreed that the PCis the “hardest working committee in the city”. He then reported on his CapCon
attendance, explaining each session he attended and highlights thereof. One in particular he mentioned included a website
with a plethora of information that he wanted everyone to know about: www.mihousingdata.org

11. City Manager Comments/Reports
City Manager Stoddard reported that logs and debris were removed from around the trestle by the City of Kalamazoo at no
cost to us. She then offered anyone with questions or other concerns to call or text her.

12, Adjournment
There being no further business to come befare the Commission, it was moved by Commissioner Mendoza and supported
by all to adjourn the meeting at 8:16 p.m.
Shannon Stutz, City Clerk




City of Parchment
Check Register Report

Warrant 1513
Check Check Date Vendor Name Description Amount
38044 04/02/2024 COMPANICN LIFE LIFE & AD&D INS - APRIL EE LIFE 66.50
38045 04/02/2024 CONSUMERS ENERGY CITYWIDE MONTHLY ENERGY USE 2,854,31
38046 04/02/2024 VOID 0.00
38047 04/02/2024 CORNERSTCNE TECHNOLOGIES NEW PHONE SERVICE - CITY HALL 739.98
38048 04/02/2024 FISHBECK PARCHMENT MILL SITE #2 - EPA GRANT 7,638.27
38049 04/02/2024 HONIGNIA_N BROWNEFIELD REDEV - ISLAND AND G AVE THRU 967.50
38050 04/02/2024 J & H QIL COMPANY FUEL CHARGES (3/01/24 TO 03/15/24 376.03
38051 04/02/2024 KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP CONTRACT - APRIL 42,739.11
Police $36,684.50; fire 5575,00; 911 notif 479.61
38052 04/02/2024 NANCY EATON BINGQ FOR BAGS - CUPCAKE SUPPLIES 169.12
38053 04/02/2024 POINT AND PAY MONTHLY SERVICE FEE - FEBRUARY 50.00
38054 04,/02/2024 REPUBLIC SERVICES #249 DPW - APRIL TRASH SVC 702.29
38055 04/02/2024 ROBERT BRITIGAN MML CAPITAL CONFERENCE - MILEAGE & PARK| 118.85
380556 04/02/2024 STERICYCLE, INC. SHREDDING SERVICES - CUSTOMER NO. 100068 264.80
38057 04/02/2024 THRUN LAW FIRM P.C. USDA LOAN (BONDS) THRU 03/05/2024 15,660.00




06°59 9.°T98 BELLT FZ°9€9°T 00°BE¥'C BIBITPAN 000" ZZL-002-T0T
00°0 00°SZL 00°0 00°0 00" s2L uotjesusduo) §,I93I0H 000" 02L-002-T10T
00°00T (EL7L9G79) FS 06672 £L°L8579 000 899IT3®Y - 9DURINSUT [RITISOH 000" 6TL-00Z-T0T
0618 FC FTS’S EF FOC‘T 9L 6B ‘62 007 0G0 ‘98 uocTeuag 000" 8TL-002-T0T
Z¥ 12 8ETEFT'E 00" 0 Z9°958 00°000°F STATIONPSQ 9OURINSUL TOO 9TL-00E~TO0T
LL'8S 267 K96 62 21 9FL T BO'STLZY 00-089‘zZL soueansul 8ITT/TeITASOH 000" 9TL-002-T0T
69" ¥9 69°8T8°¢ 6% "8G/ TET966 9 00°ST8'0T AzTanoeg TETo0S 000 STL-00Z-T0T
6L %9 SETLOV LT BT 6LY‘EC 59°2£0°2¢ 00T0PF ‘67T awTl 1aed - TTOIARg 000 E0L-002-T0T
06°29 8G EET'ST 0L'GE6‘6 Z¥TOSFT6 00069 9ET suwty TInd - TToxABg 000 ' E0L-00Z2-T0T
UCTIBAISTUTURPY - Q0g 3deg
08°T8 6E°6G5°0T zZ1'2es ‘g T FSV LY 00°FT0’'8S saT3eTSTEaT - (0T 3ded Teaol
00001 TE°0 0070 637112 % 00eig’ve pung I9U3e O3 IABISUBIL 000°666-00T-T0T
oo 00 60E 000 000 00°60€ STORUBT SIS TH 000" §56-00T-TO0T
8z C0E LE065°E 697886 £6°655'T 00" 0sT’s Butystigqnd 3 Butiutag 000" 006-00T-TOT
6T°09 L1-0Z8 00" o E8°6EZ'T 00°090°¢ UOTINTIAIUOD DUTTTRSSEM I00°088-00T-T0T
¥B 12 00°508 000 00-sze g0tog0’t UOTIoOWoXd ALTUNWNOD) 000°088-00T-T0T
00°00T  (¥L°STT'T) 00" 0 FLTGZT'T 000 PuTuUTEI] ? £23n3T3SUT 000°098-00T-TOT
AR 00 SEF’'T 00" 0 00°0TT 00°GFS‘T son 3 sdIysIsquUa 000" 0£8-00T-T0T
66" L8 00 ¥8F T . 00" TI6L 00°9L8°0T 00°09E 2T ‘AZDE TENIDIBIIUOD/TBUCTSESJ0I] 000°008-00T-TOT
9£ 00T  (BS'g) 80721 86 EZL 00" T2ZL soT1ddng butieasdp 000" 0FL-00T-TO0T
0762 Tt 8LT SZ°ST 6G°EL 00" 252 BIATD TPV 000" 2¢L-00T-T0T
000 00°96¢ 00°0 00" o 007962 uoTIesUDdWoD §,I93I0M 0007 02L-00T-TOT
9T° 67 GETF9L 0T 69 G9°FIE 00°6LO'T A3TINODg TeTO0S 000" STL-00T-T0T
TLTLL 00°600°Z 00'050°T 006669 0070006 SwWTL 3Ied -~ TTOXARg 000 €0L-00T-TOT
saT3eTsSTheT - 00T 3dea
soInayTpusdxy
L9°0L ¥0'00L7ECS 527925 '1S 968261921 00°629°S8L°T SHOANAATT TELOL
L9 0L F0 00L EES §2°9z6°19 9682671221 00°6Z0°GBLT ooo 3dsg TR3IOL
TE LG LE*0BE'Z 00°0 £ 6027 00°009 'S §901Nn05 DUTOUBUTE Z5U30 000°S69-000-T0T
L6 9 LOTG09 0T 00°0 £6°F6E'6 00000 ‘oe SNOSUBRTTEDSTH 000 #¥69-000-T0T
000 00°000 ‘02T 00°0 0070 00'000 ‘02T PESUISAG T0J JUSWSSINGUITIT 000" 089-000-T0T
000 00 000 “LET 00" 0 000 00°000“LZT SPUNI I9Y30 WoAI SASFSUBI] 000°9L9-000-TOT
88°85T {90°%z8°T) Z8TLSST 907929 L 00008’V SIUBWISDAUT UO ISBIIUL 000" $99-000-T0T
0L°ST SETFPFLD £9°20T G9-6GZ T 0070008 S8uTd DTIIEBIL 000°Z99-000-T0T
0070 00000t 0C o 0070 00°000°T paIspuly SaDTAISE 0T ssbIeyn 000 Z£9-000-T0T
£9° L9 00" LE6 708 000 00°£30769T 00-000'052 XBL S2TR§ 9383% 000" GL5-000-T0T
1% "¥8 00"0F0 "6 00" 0 00°096 ‘8% 007000 "85 JuBTd I91eM - JUBIH S1EIF 000 F¥S-000-T0T
00°00T  {SE€°L0070T) 00°0 SETLO0T0T 000 s1URID 51E1§ 000 0¥S-000-T0T
000 00 8egg‘ZE 000 000 Q08¢ 'CE Butpund Terspsi ISYI0 000" 825-000-T0T
LOTLL 9¢ TET'2E 89°Z9Z ‘9% 797856 "L0T 00 0B0'0FT SUCTIOSTION 23ISEM PTTOF 000" #S7-000-TOT
007001 000 00 00L"2 00°00L"2 0oTooL’e §834 uUoT3EsIoay 000 E57-000-TOT
68719 Z5°29T'9 000 8% 800 0T 00 TLT 9T 834 UOTSTASTORD 000" Z5%~-000-TOT
9 12 ST'OTT'ET 00°00F% S86EEE 0006k ST 5994 pug 35USSTT 000°15%-000-TOT
9T 00T {zE'Es) SETSETL ZETzsw'ee 00" 00k ‘cE S29d UOTIOITOD %I 000" 8F7—000-TO0T
GZTOL 2T 06T L LLTLSE 88 608°'T 00 Co0‘y soxel U0 AjTRuUed 000" SFF-000-T0T
AN 5 £9°LET'S6 00°0 LE"ZI0'6F 00°002 ' %FT ¥BJ BITU§ El1§ AJTUNNWG] TEDOT] Q00 TFP-000-TOT
ZETOOT (00" ) 000 00rLoC'zZ g0-goe’e SITITTIOR TRTIISNPUL - SJHE], 000°50%-000-T0T
1000t (0D ¥L) 000 00 vLe'008 0070087008 SNUSASY KB GO0 P0OFP-000-T0T
000 adeq
sSonuanTY
aNAT TEIENTD - 10T Pung
aasn (TUWAONEY ) TYHION (HSYMIDEA) ISYAMONI  (TYREONIY) TYRON LA9INd AEQNANY NOILATHOSEd HEAHON 19
1904 % ADNYTVE ¥Z0Z/TE/£0 HINOR ¥TOZ/TE/E0 pCc~£e0e

ATIEVTIVAY

2T/ 1 :obeg

d04 ALIATLOV

HONYIVE dLX

P20e/TE/E0 ONIANY dOIddd

LNARHOIYd A0 ALTD 90d Id0ddd JENLINIdXET INV dANIATT

qusuwyosied :4d
ggg :I9sn
WY LS:60 ¥Z0C/CT/¥0



EFTLTE  (££°8TZ'G) 000 €L BI9 L 00°00%°2 aTqTIoNpeg SOURINSUTL TO0 8TL-0FP-T0T
Lol TETIL L LF ZTST’9 89°880%¢ 007008 1% BOURINSUI 9ITT/TE3TdSCH 000 9TL-0FF-T0T
LY %6 FE£'9Z¢ EELLY 99°€L5°5 00°006°G A3TINOSg TETIDOG 000 STL-0FF-TCT
£9°TL L5 0BE 92 pergee’y €7 6TT'89 007001756 swWTL [Tnd ~ TToXAed 000'Z0L-0FF~TOT
S90TAXSS OITANG - 0FF 3deq
FETE9 62 V6T LY 6L FET L 1L 67618 00" QFL 82T 2atd — 9£¢ 3dsg TE3lOL
00°0 Q0" 0SF ST a0 0 00°0 00°06% ST TeszTdeD 000 0LE-9EE-TOT
05°¢ 00°0%6 ‘6 00°0 00°0o€ 00" 0DE“OT §10308I3UOD " JUTEH 3 Itedsy 000 0E£6-9EE-T0T
6L F9 L8585 000 €T FI8°T 00°008°2 S8T1TTTIN 000" 0Z6-%EE-TOT
ST 20T (00"zZEE) 000 00°gee st 00°000 ‘ST SpuUOd 3 SDURANSUT 000 0T6-8EE-TOT
60"E9 95 965 T T9 6LF Fy-82L77 00" SCE'F SUOTIBO TURIMIC] 000" 0S8-9EE-TOT
00" 00T {00 00F'T) 000 00" 00%°T 000 seng 3 sdTUSISQUSKH 000 0£8-9E€E-T0T
T7 6L DE"GET'ST 00°GLG'S 0L"F9E°8S 0o 00s‘EL TAZRg TRNINBIIUOYD/TRUOTSSSIOI] 0007 008-8€E-T0T
000 00°50T 000 000 00*S0T setTddng Ajsyes 000" 08L-9EE-T0T
1T°81T {05°98T) 8T°0ET’T 0579127 00°0E0°T sorrddng soueusjuten 3 ITedsy 000" GLL-8EE-TOT
00EE 907069 00°0 ¥6 6EE 0O 0e0’T TTQ 3 DUITOSED 000" 9%L-2€E-TOT
anto ootooz’s 000 000 0o-ooe’s gat1ddng bHurjexado 000" 0FL-9E€E-TOT
aaTd - g9gg 3deg
87" €8 0T TET ¥L 09 69L"LE 06 E0T'SLE 00°GEE'6FY 80TTod - Qog 3deq TBl0L
££7E8 00'69€ €L 05°¥89‘9¢ 00°6%8'99¢ 00" FLC0FY TATBE TEN}ORIJUOD/TRPUOTSSEI0IJ 000°00B-00E£-T0T
00°80T {%Z°8) T9FT PZTTT 00" €0T SIEDTPSN 000" ZZL-00E-TOT
L6 9L A A A 6729 99°GL¥ 007812 AjTanoesg [eTIDOS 000 STL~00E-T0T
£E° 16 00" 8ZL 00°800°T 00" 2LS 'L 00°00% ‘8 SWTL }IBd - [T0IARg 000" €0L-00£-T0T
821104 - (Q0E 1dsa
Z9°G¥ ST 05F BT SLUERE GLTEZT'CT 00°%L579¢2 s90TAIRS TebeT - 0Tz 3dea Te3OL
057671 G2 GET’8 Sz 1€l GLTB96°T 00 F60 0T S5I811BH B01[0d-ABUIOTIIV 000°208-012-T0T
Z9°19 00" 5z2£°g 057218 00°S5T 0T 00 08% ‘9T TelsusDn - A3UIOllY 000" T08~0TZ-TOT
S9OTAIDE [EbsT - grz 3deg
6L°99 LBTBLE‘SET 67 ET6'TE €T 60T 2L 00 68E°L0OF UCT3RIZSTUTURY - 007 2d8g [Blog
00°0 00000 ‘2T 0co 000 00700072t TedIouTIg-JuUSmaITIow 20930 000 T66-00C-T0T
00°00T  {ZT°%ES) 00t o ZI FES 000 SNOBURTTODSTH 000" 556-002-T0T
50" 2% 00°69£°2 00°0L9 00°0LY 00" 6E0°E 8I030BIJUOY "JuUTRR 3 xredey 000 0E6-D0E-TOT
£Z°L8 £6°8LS 000 LOTESE 'S 00 ZES'® SOT3TTTIL 000 0E6-002-T0T
€8°90T (00°66F) 0070 00 CT8 "L 00 EIE’L spuog # 2ouBansur 000 QT6-00Z-T0T
000 00709072 000 0070 00709072 ButystTIqnd % bBurjutad 000" 006-002-T0T
18709 I8 %25 Goto 6T %18 00°6€€°T fUTUTZIL 3 S93IN3TIEUT 0007 098-002~T0T
ZLTLG PFOTLT 0679201 96t LFE L 00614 SUOT3RDTUNUILOD 000 068-002-T0T
06 21 (00D°€82) 0§ LTE 00°6TG T 0pt9gz’'t ssng » sdTysIsgquspy 000" 0£8-002-T0T
v0° 78 PRTI96°T 00°0GF 9T EEZT'8 00°58L'6 seotazsg rsinduop 000°508-002-T01
£0°L8 LT G50°E 88°568°¢ €L Z0G'0C 00°8G65'ET *AISg TEN3ORIIUCD/TRUOTSSSIONG 000°008-002-T0T
6642 £5TLES T 0070 L7509 00 E9T’E go1Tddng eouruslUTEN # atedey 000" GLL-002-T0T
61122 (E£F 96F°T) PBTBIF C¥-9GS’'F 00'090°Z sat1ddng Butiexado 000° 0% L-002-10T
80" LE TE 908y €2 1EE 65°0EB‘E 00" LET°8 abeasog 0007 0EL-002-10T
00°0 00 008°‘6 60" 0 000 00°008°6 }TFousg JUSWSITILDY VHOI 000" F2L-002-TOT
seInyrpusdxg
aNOd TYEENES - 0T Rung
aasn ("INFEONDY) TVHION (ASYHADAA) ASYIIONI  (TVHNONEY) TYHION 145009 JAINANY NOTLATHOSHd YHINNN TD
1904 % ADNYTYL ¥Z0Z/TE/E0 HLINOH FCOC/TE/ED 7Z-E20T
ATFETIVAY H0d KLIATLOY AONYTYE dLA

Zi/z :obea

PZ0Z/TE/E0 SNIANE doIddd

LNANHDYYd 40 ALID ¥0d I¥0dAY FUAITANEAXHE ANV dONHATS

JQuswuysIes [gd
855 tIosn

WY LS:60 ¥C0C/2T/70



0E"TL 85°8%£ 0TS 76°9687€2T Z¥T0LS7L92°T 0066 LLL T SHYALTANIIKA TYIOL
15789 LOTTSZ709 F0°G88 %I £6°LLOYTIET 00'62E 16T 2IN3IND ¥ UOTIe®IDVY ‘siIed - T¢L FdeQ TE3IOL
000 00°08T’9 0070 0070 00° 0BT ‘9 Teltden 0007 0L6-TSL~TOT
9682 GT'6GL LT 9F 9.6 18°0%CL 00°000'S¢E §1030B13U0D " QuUTeN ¥ Itedsy 000" 086~TSL-TOT
9£'92T  (50°826°T) 96°'62¥ 0152’6 00 ETE L SST3TTTAN 000°026-TSL-TOT
I5°#¥0T  (00°0Z28) 00°0 00Tk L 007 00T 'L SPUOY 3 SOURINSUT 000" 0T6-TGL-TOT
000 00°000 02 Q00 o0 0000008 TAZ9E [En3DBIIUCD/ [BUCTSSeI0dd 000" 008-TSL-TOT
0070 00" ZT¥ 00°0 000 00° 2TV satrddng Azsgeg 000 08L-TSL-T0T
08" FF G6L06E7L ZETGSL T2°666°G DO6E ST s9T1ddng sOUBUSIUTER ¥ ZTRdoy 000 SLL-TSL-TOT
LY 18 LV FES 000 £5°67E°T 00°¥88°¢C ITO % SUTToSES 000" 9¥%L-TISL-T0T
86°Z0T  (S£°427) LLTLY GE°SLB 007058 SIBDTPEH 000 2ZL-TSL-TOT
0070 00°00§°T 000 000 00°005°T uotiesusduo) £,IAION 000 0ZL-TIGL-T0T
9z 06 TV 181’2 BSG5T°¢ 657850702 00-o00z‘ze UOTEUsg 000 8TL-TSL-TOT
SLU96T (05 9SE’T) 00°0 05 %572 Q0 00% ‘T 2TgIIONPS] SOURINSUT TO0 9TL-TSL-TOT
67" bY £T 2TE'ET £5°016°2 LB LBS 0T a0°008°€e ooueInsul =3T7/TeiTdscH 000 9TL-TSL-TOT
L6750T  (987¢€¥T) 9.°68¢ 98 €FL'E 00°006°¢ Altanoss [ETDOS 000 STL-TSL-TOT
TG 60T  (BT°LZ0°6) 997669 F 91" L2809 007008 7SS SwrL TEnd - T[I0ZARg 000 Z0L-TSL-TOT
BANITND ¥ UQTIRSIDSY ‘saed - [§L 3dsQ
6606 ZRTEET’'S 000 8T 9LL'ZS 0070008 gosuadyg uers JueTd I9leMm - 165 2ded TeaCL
00" 00T (547067°2) 000 9L 06T Z 00°0 SOTITTTIN 000°0€6-T65-T0T
00 00T (007000 °T) 000 00°000°T 000 song ¥ sdrySIsusyH 000" 0€£8-T65-TOT
GEG8 06 €LY ‘8 000 0T'92676% 00000 ‘85 ‘ATSS TENIDBIZUOD/TPUCIESDICIS 000" 008-T6G-TOT
00 00T {ZE°6S) 0G0 Z2E°65 000 se1Tddng hHurieasdo 000 0PL~TEG-TOT
sasuadxy 3UBISH JUETd I891EM - [6§ 3deQ
Zrv9 GL°8ST'€9T seT8LE'8e T2 6LEGET 00" 8ES'8GF s2DTAlag 2TTdqnd - OFF 3dsg [230g
000 007000 Sy 000 000 00°000°S¥ Te3Tde) 000 0LE-0VFP-TOT
00°00T  {SL°0SE) 000 SLT0SE 0070 SNOJUR TIBDSTH 000" S56-0F7-T01
68 ¥IT {(FE"608'T) 62 20L PETE96ET 00°¥5T'2T SI0]0BIIUOYD IUTEK ¥ ITedsy 000 0£6-0%7-T0T
6E°69 FR'GEDOT TG 66T 31" 596 8T 0000062 buTiybTT 1898I171§ 000°926-0%7-T0T
£7'G0T  (¥Z°987%) G6'6TF Pz LEE 6 00°T196°8 SBTITTTIN 0007 026-0¥7-T0T
LE" 86 0086 000 00°206°S 0070009 SpuUCH 3 SDUBINSUL 000" 0T6-0FFP-TOT
(o3 o] 00°GTS 000 000 00"GTG UoTIONOEd AJTUTUILOD) 000'088-0FF-T0T
000 00°60E 000 000 00 60€ BuTuTRil ® S93M3TISUT 000 098-0F7-T0T
GO LLT (28 66L) 867 61T 7876281 00" 0ED’T SUCTIBOTUNUNIO) 000" 058-0FF~T0T
000 00°LZ6 000 000 00" LE6 seng 3 sdIysIsquap 000 0E8-0FF-T0T
onteot (LT 66 9GF CLTTSTE 00 060°E TB1USY WIOTTUN 000 ST8-0%7-T0T
2509 F1°95£ ‘2% GZ DP9 '6 AR £F9 48 00"00070ET gobIeyl UWOTASSTTOD YSTOOny 000" 0T8-0F%-T0T
86762 9Z"20T°11T 000 ¥LTLE8E 00°000°ST TATSS TEPN}ORIZUOD/TRUOCISSSJIOI] 000 008-0F7—T0T
0070 00°G15 00" 0 0G"0 00°GS1s serTddng A3sgeg 000 08BL-0FF-TOT
1€°65 GLT98F’F PO FTIOT SZTETG'D 00°000°TT geTTddng eourusjuTel % ATedsy 000 GLL-0FF-TOT
0T°2ZT (VL TGO’'T) 85 ZET TLTEEGS 0D 2ES’T TIO ¥ SUIOSED 000" 9%L-0PF7-TO0T
TLTET 16°182°¢C 000 60°EGE 00°6L5°2 geTTddng butieaado 000" 0FL-0FF—TOT
6088 9Z'9LT GO TIT FLUEOET 00 08%F’'T SILDTPOH 000" ZZL-0FF-TO0T
0070 00 058°E 000 000 00 0sE’E UCTIRsUadiie] 5, 193100 000" 02L-0FF-TO0T
§L7G6G SETGLLIYT 179082 S9 vezl’'1e 00 006’LE uoTSUSg 000" 8TL~DFF~TOT
soany tpusdxy
aHNd TYgENED - T0T pund
qHasn ("TVWEONEY) TYRHEON (ASYEYOHd) ASVAMDINI  ((IVWIONIY) TYHEON La9dnd qHEANTRNY NOTLATHDSHA YEGHON 19
I9ag % HINYIVE ¥202/T€/€0 BINOK ¥Z0e/TE/ED ¥Z-£202
TTIETIEAY ¥Od ALIAILOY FINYIVE dLE

Z1/€ rabeg

LNHRHDEYd J0O

FC0Z/TE/E0 DNIANA COIdHd

ALID d¥04A LHOdEd HUNILIANHAXE dNY AANTIAHA

quswyoIed :gd
§5Q 1I9E]

WY £LS160 PZ0Z/CT/F0



SHENLIANIIXIT % SHNNIAHY J0 LHEN

SHAQLIANEIXY TYIO0L
SHOANEATT TVLOL
IO CTEIHNAD - TOT PUng

aMna TYEENED - T0T pund

LT EL ¥ "TSEET (69°0LE"ZL) (9% " T¥9‘S) 00°0TL L
0E°TL 858BL 0TS ¥67968°¢€C2T ZrT0LG'L92 T 00 6T6"LLL'T
Le70L ¥0T00L'€ECS §Z2°92Z5°16 96°8Z6°192°1 00°622°58L'T
adasn {TYHIONIY) TYRICON (SVHIDHEA) ASYHMHONI  (IVHHONLVY) TYHAON LADANT ATANTHY
1904 % HAONYTYE FZ0Z/TE/E0 HINOW FE€0C/TE/ED FEZ-€£20C

ATIETIVAY

L/ v tabeg

HOd ALIAILIVY

HINYIYd dLA

¥202/T1S/€0 ONIANd doTyEdd

LNAWHOYYd A0 ALID Y04 Id0ddd dUNITANTAXYE dNY HONIATT

NOILdIEDSHd MEARON T2

qusuyDIeg g
585 1I2E0
WE LG'60 ¥20Z/TT/%0



56799 5P O¥E 000 557689 00°0E0°T ITO 3 SUTTOSED 000°9FL-8LF-E0Z
6L EL 69°9¢ 8Z 0T TE°£0T 00" 0FT SIEDTPOH 000 ZZL~8LF-Z0T
000 00029 000 000 00 0e9 uotiesusduo) §,ISAI0N 000" 0ZL-BLY-20T
08" 0L G098 FLTO6T G6°€ZT'C 00 000’e ucTSUSg 000" 8TL-BLEF-E0T
000 00052 000 000 007082 9TUT3IdUPEQ doupInSU] T00'9TL-8LF-202
9%°'%8 ST GOF L8568 SBT6EG’T 00°000°c 9ouRINSUL SFTI/TelTdsod 000°9TL-8LF-202
LETL 96°89T 68 €Y PPOTEY 00019 Ajtanoes TerOO§ 000 STL-8LF-Z0T
L0"G8 §87892°T L6TETL ST 1€2’L 00" 005’8 SWIL TTWA - TToxdeRg 000" Z0L-8LF-20¢2
SDUBULQUTEN I2IUTM - g8.F 2d2d
8£°89% 19°882°TT 9L £06°T € TES ST 00°0ZT°L2 S9DTAISS DTIIRIL - SLF 3deQ TeICL
¥F Z9 PF6TE Y L5629 9GS 08T L 00 00§°TT SI0IDRAJUOS " JUTRH ¥ Ztedsy 000" DE6-5L%-202
20791 8r 2212 00" 0 AR AN 4 00"S8L5°'Z sa11ddns edurPUSIUTRH % ITeday 0007 GLL-SLP~Z0T
000 00°S16G 0G0 000 00°STS TTC 7 sui{oseEn 000" 8¥L-SLF-202
S¥THG 99 %G QL4 FET52 00°07T BITOTPON 000 ZZL-SL¥-Z20C
0070 00018 000 000 00 0TS ucTiesusduo) §,I93I0H 000 0ZL-SL¥-20T
8 LG F6 ES0°T 2T LET 90°9%7 T g0°00s°‘zg uoTsuULd 000 8TL-SLF-T0T
00°0 00002 000 000 00°002 STQTIONP2 2DULINSUT T00°9TL-GLF-Z0T
6527 FL b9 %9 76 €45 9ETLSBT 00°005°2 B0UBINSUI 8FTT/TRITdSOH 000" 9TL-GLF-20T
666 0F 022 8T EE 09'6LZ 007005 Aytanoeg Teroog 000" GTL-SLF-20Z
€0 7L SOT0TS ‘T 69174 G5 68G°T 007002 °9 SWTIL TTI0d - [ToLARd 000" Z0L-SL%-202
STOTAIRE OTIIRAL - gLF 1ded
S6°89 €S ESLTL 02 ELF'T LE BTZ LT 00°€L6 FT POUBUSIUTRK UTINCY - g9y z2dsg TEI0L
LE" 89 SE E£9T'E 000 F9°9£8°9 00 000 ‘0T §I030vx3Uo) QuUTeN 3 ITedsy 000 0£6-£97-202
29766 S0°6 86°8€T F6 65¢72 00°69£°Z sa17ddng sourusluUTEN 3 JATedeay 000 SLL-£9F7-20€
000 00" 60¢ (o]oRds] 000 00°60€ TIoc 3 8uUTTosE 000 9P L-£9%-202
0E"6F 8E"£9 T0°8 29719 007521 SIBITPIH 000" ZZL-£8F%-20C
000 00°5€G 0G0 000 00" GES uoTesUSducD S, I9XI0M 000" 0ZL-£9F-202
SL799 FyoTIEL BETLET 95 89F% ‘T 0o-ooz’e uoTsuad 000" 8TL-E£9F-20T
0070 00012 00" o 00°0 007012 STYLIDURSJ S0URINESUT T00°9TL-E9F-20F
798 88°00€ 19" 665G Z1°668°T 0atonz ‘e 2ouRINSUL YT/ Tedtdson 000°9TL-E9F-C07
870G 57192 GZ FE Gy €92 00°5e8 A3tanosg TeIOOS 000" STL-E9F-Z07
29799 98°691'¢C 96865 PL 0EE"F 00 00s 9 SWIL [[0d — [TorARg 000" Z0L-E£9F~207
SOUBUSIUTRE BUTIN0Y - £9§ Jdag
00°0 0070007201 00°0 000 00°000°Z0T UOTIONIISUOD - TgF 3deg TeiolL
000 00700072071 000 00°0 00000 ‘20T SI03DBIAJUOD T JUTIRK % arzdey 000 0E6-TS¥-ZT0T
UOTIONIISUC) - [G6F 3dsg
goInaTpusd=y
8£°89 LY F96 86 687605 FT £5° 5G9 LET 00005 ‘98T SHANIATT TELOL
8E£789 LY 796 '8S B8 606 VT €6 SESLZT 0070057981 000 3dsQ TPIOL
00°00T (10°T8T) Gz 8L T0°T8T 0070 SIUBWISHAUL UO 82I873UT 000" F99-000-202
6289 8F"GFT 65 POTTIER‘¥T 25 FSE LT 00005 ‘98T 15 30¥ - sjuelIg 33B1S 000 9FS-000-202
000 2deg
sSanusasy
ONAd LEFILS 9OOVH - 07 pund
adasn (TYIHONEY) TYREON (ASVAUDHA) ASYMEONI  (TYHHONEY) TYHMON IA9aNE TIANTHAY NOILAITED83a FHAHON 19
Ioad % HONVTYE YZ0Z/TE/E0 HINOK FPC0E/TE/ED ¥Z2-£202
HTIVTIVYAY MOJAd ALTAILOV HONYI¥E dLA
FZ0Z/TE/E0 DNIANT dCId=d JueugLLed  rdd
558 :Iesn
Z1/G rabeg LNAWHDUVd A0 ALID HOA LY0dTd TINLIANAIXH ANY FANHAHH WY 15160 PE02/2T/ 00



£T°0%F {09°Z21Z'68) LG 617 ‘8 09°G69°2L (D0 LTG'9T) SHANLIANAdXE % SEANIATS A0 LIN
10°L2 LOTLLT'8%T z6°680°S £6"6ER'FS 00°LTD'E0Z SHENIIANIAIXT TYIOL
88789 LP FI678S 68°606 FT €8 GQEG LTI 00°005798T SHNNIATY TYLOL
1@NNd LETALE YOrOYH - 20Z pPund
10°LE LOTLLT'8FT Z6°680°S £6°628'FG 00 LTO’E0Z SHUALIANAAXE TELOL
LG L S8 66L0E FEBET ST FOL'T 00°%05°22 UoTIRAASTUTUPY - z8¥ 3dsd T30l
00°0 0G6°000°0Z 00°0 0c-o 00°000°02 PESUIDAC SATIBILSTUTWPY 000°096-Z87-207
00°TL 08°S 8E°T 0Z°FT 00-02 BILDTOIN 000°22L-28¥-20T
00°0 00°ST 00°0 00°0 00°S7T uoTiesusdmo) €, 193108 000 0ZL-Z8F~-20Z
TL LS 89°57T2 e59g [AY Y 00 01s uoTsUad 000" 8TL-28F—202
000 00" 0% 000 00°0 00" 0% 8TYTIONPaQ a8DURINSUI T00'9TL-28%-20C
66°09 Sy 8te LT70 55 I¥E 00°098 SOUBINSUT SITT/TelTdsoH 000°9TL-28F-202Z
8L 9L FE'ET 76°¢9 99°09 00°6L AjTanoag TeTSO0S 000°STL-28F-20Z
T9°LL 86°98¢ SE°66 Zh"E66 00°082°1 suTL TTnd - TToIAed 000°20L-28F-20C
ucTIeASTUTHPY ~ Z8% 3daq
Z0°9L B0 GEE‘D ZOHLG'T ZG FB0'0Z 00°02F ‘92 SDURUSIUTRH ISIUTM - §.F 3dag Te30L
g0 00T (L2718 LT ET LZ 18 0070 sat1ddng e@durusiuUTeER 2 Ziedsy 000" GLL-BLF-C0T
9T wL 09-56¢€’'2 000 0% FLB'9 00r0Lz’s 1TeS 000 E5L-8LF—-20F
saanyrpuadsyg
, aNOE IEEELS "HOL¥H - Z(Z puna
aEsn (TYFRONEY) TYRHON (ASYTEDEA) HSYAIONI  (TYWHONEY) TYRMONM 192N QHINARY MOTLATHISHA TAGHAN 9
1Lodd % HONYTYd ¥Z02/TE/€0 HINOW FZOZ/TE/ED FZ-£202

dTIYTIVAY

Z1/9 rabeg

H0d ALIATILOYE

HONYIVE dLA
FC0C/TE/E0 ONIANS TOIdEd

LNARHDEYd 40 ALID W04 LHO4EY HUNLIGNAIXH

AN¥ dANIAHY

quswyLIrd :dd
S58 I=EN

WY G160 ¥202/21/%0



5699 5% 0%E 000 557689 00°0E0’T TTO % suITosED 000 9%L-8LF-£0T
08789 ¥Z° 5% FL°OT 9L766 00°S¥T SIEDTPOH 000 ZZL-8LF-E£0T
0070 00529 0G0 Q00 g seY ucTiesuado] §,I93I0K 000 0ZL-8L¥-E0T
Z6° L9 87296 8Z €671 ZLTLED'Z 00°000°€ uoTsuag 000 8TL-8L¥-E0T
000 007552 000 o¢o 00562 2TgTlONpEa 20URINSUT 100 9TL-8LF-E0T
0z %8 0T ¥LE 2GS T6G 06 G252 00 0o0’‘e SoUBRINSUI SITT/Te3TdSOH 000" 9TL-8LF-£0T
£E°69 797881 SETER 8E"9ZF 00519 AlTINoeg TRIDOS 000 GTL-8LF~E0T
0z-z8 99°21S°T T6"¥OL FETLBG'D 00°00s’'s surty, ITnd - TToIkeg 000" 20L-8BLF-E0T
SOUWRUDIUTEN A81ULM - g% 3dsg
G0"GF ZB'GGF 0T ££'962°T BT 2LS B 00" 8Z0'6T £80TAI9F OTIIRIL - S.% 3ded Te3ol
T6°08 00°8TT 00°0 007008 00°8T2 8I1030833U0D JUTRH 3 ITedsy 000 0E6-GLF-E0T
Q00 00°0ST’s 000 000 00°08T‘S saT1T7ddng =curusiulel 3 ATedsy Q00 GLL-SLF-E0C
a0t o 00°STS 000 600 00516 TT0 3 SUTTOSED 000°9FL-SLY-£07
ZF LY 86°0L £9°L z0° %9 00°'GET 2IRDTRER 000 ZZL-SL¥-E0T
060 00064 0070 000 007065 uoTjesusdwo) £,ISHI0M 000 02L-SLF-£02
L89S 65°T80°T LLTEET TH°8TF T 00 0052 uotTEusd 000"8TL=5LF-E0Z
o000 00 0¥%C 000 000 00°0F%C STYTrionpad SDUBITISUT TO00 9TL-5L%-£02
9L 2L 86°089 6G°6¥G Z0°6T8°T 00°005°2 soueansul SITT/TEITds50H 000" 9TL-SLP-£0T
FZTLY T0 908 99" gg 66 LT 00° 08§ AgTanoeg [etoog 000 GTL-SLF-£0Z
£5°ZL 9z €0L°T 89°CES PL96FF 0070029 Wty TInd - TToTARg 000 Z0L-SLF-E0E
SODTAISS OTIFRAL - GoLb 3ded
18709 €7 6ZE£ 0T TTTELET £GT9Z09T 00°9G6£7°92 SOURUSIUTER 2UTIN0Y - £9% 3dog Tzaol
9T s T0°¥85°% 000 66°6T% ‘S 00 000°0T £10308a3U0) JuTel » Itedsy 000" 0£6-£0F-€02
6Z°€9 TF"58Z°T 896 °8¢T 6679122 00 zos‘c gaTTddng soueusjurted ® itedsy D00 GLL-C9F-£02
0070 00 60E 0070 0070 00" 60¢€ TI0 3 2UTTOSED 000" 9FL-E9FV-E02
£6° 5% 0F 8L 10°8 09799 00 GFT SIVDTPSH 000 ZZL-€£9F-£0¢
0070 00" 622 00°0 00°0 00529 uotjesuadwc) €,IS3ICH 000" 0ZL-E9F-E0T
G799 TV TEL 6ETLET 85789F°T 00°002°2 uoTSuUSd 000°8TL~E9F-£0T
000 00°55¢ 000 000 00°S55¢ STUTIoNDad SOURINSUL TO0 9TL-E9F-E0T
Z£°98 06°00€ 092666 0T 668°T 0000’2 aourInsul 2ITT/TelTdson 000 9TL-£9F-£0%
FE"5¥ 6T SE€ LZ BE 18982 007029 AyTanoes TeTO0g 000 STL-ESF-E0Z
26 T4 0T 528°T L& 856 06°%L9°% 0070058 ouTL TTnd - TToxAed 000 Z0L—-E9F-£0T
SOUBUSIUTEH 2UTINOY ~ £9F »deg
000 00°000°21 00°0 0070 007 0G0‘ZT UOTIONIISUOD — TSk A0 Teaol
0C°0 0000021 0070 000 PO 00 ZT TAISG [RNGIRIJUC)/TRUOTSSHIOI] 000 008-TG7-£0C
UOTFONIISUC) - T6% 1dag
saanjTpuadxyg
LF 69 097c0z’cz §G2LZ Y 0% 96L'CS 0000094 SEONIATY TYIOL
LE 69 09 €02°€Z GG ZLZ’9 0% "96L"2S 00°00079L oo0 3deqg TElOL
00°00F (20" 606!} 9Z " 16€ 7D 606 0070 SIUSUSDAUL UO 3§2I2]UT 000°F99-000-£02
82789 2980T '%E 67°188°¢G 8E 168716 00°00079L TG 0¥ - Sjueas =138 000°9¥%5-000-£02
000 2deg
SINUDIALD Y
dHNAd LHAYLS T¥O0T - €07 Punsg
adasn {(TYREOREY ) TYRMON (ASVIYIET) HASYHIONT  (TYRHONTY) TYRHON ILADANE OFANINY NOILAIEDSHA TAGHNN TS
Isad & ADNYIVE FZ02/TE/E0 HINOK FZ0C/TE/EO PZ-£202
HTIVTIVAY Mod ALTATLOY FONYTYE ALA
PC0C/TE/€0 ONIONA dOI¥Ed qusuyoIed dd
S85 ~I9E)
ZT/ L rabeg ENFWHOYYd A0 ALID dH04 19043 SEALIANIIXE ONY HNNIATT WY LGi60 ¥20Z/2T/%0




SHANLIANAdXHE 3 SHANIAYY AC ILEN

96" £€ (Lgroge’Le} LE*098°1 L8°€9% 6 (00-L98°L2)
L TH LE €S 109 BO"ZI¥ ‘¥ £Gzee’er 00°L98 0T SEINITANIIXE TIIOL
LY 69 09 E0Z €T G5°ZLZ 9 0F"96L°2S5 a0 000 9L SANNIATI TYICL
SONOd LEIEIELES TY¥O0T - €07 pung
2L TH LETFES 09 80" 2TV ¥ EGZEEER 00°L98°E0T SAMNLIANAIXE TYI0L
e L 09°62% 12 ZE'6ET 0F"E0L°T 00°E£ET'ET UOTARIZSTUTHRY — Z8F 3d=d [BloL
0070 00000702 000 0070 00700002 peRSUISAD SATIRIFSTUTHDY 000" 096-28F-£0C
0895 08°0T 8C°T 02" ¥T 00-se 8IBDTPAR 000 ETL-Z8T-£0T
0070 0681 0G0 0070 0081 uctiesuadwo) s,I53I0M 000" 0TL-287-£0T
06°5% LEOFE TG %€ €L E6EC 000719 UCTSUS 000 BTL-Z87-£0T
0670 00" 0% 000 0070 00°06 BTYTIDNPSQ SVUBINSUL 100 9TL-Z8%-£0E
6L°8% L% "8GE 910 £6°TFE 00" 004 9DUBINSUL 9ITL/TeITASOH 000" 9TL-Z8%-£0T
¥9 709 9€"6E 766G ¥9°09 0000t Ajranoeg Tetoog 000'STL-Z8%-£0T
80°Z9 0L 9209 GE"S6 0E°£66 00009t suty TInd - ITeIxAed 000 Z0L-Z8F-E0T
TOTIRIISTUTURY - Z8% 1daq
v6°TL Z9T6TE 9 T2 E%S'T BE'OE0'LT 00°06E’€EZ SOURURGUTER L23UTH - g.F 2dsd [elofn
00'00T (157926} 0070 16926 0o"Q sa11ddng sourusjutel 3 Itedsy 000" GLL-BLF-E0T
00° %G 8L°2¥8°C 0070 ZTTLEE’E 00°08T ‘9 3TeS 000 E€SL-8BLF-E0Z
ssxngy rpusdxy
INNA LH¥EILS TY¥O0T - £07 pung
amsn {(TYRRIONTY) TVHMON (ASYHIOHA) HASYEYONT  (TVWAONTY) TUWION 1A5dnd QEONANY NOILATHISHA GEIHAN 19

1909 % AINTTEE PZ0Z/TE/E0 HINOW ¥Z0Z/TE/EQ vZ-£202

ATEVTIVAY

z1/8 :9bed

d0d ALTAILOY

HONVIVY JLA

LNIHHOEYd 40 ALID d0d IECdHEY HUNLIONHdXH

¥Z0C/TE/E0 SNIUNE dOIddd

aNY dONHATS

QUSWYDARd g0
gg5g x@s8(

WY L5:60 ¥20Z2/CT/%0




F1°%2T  (0€°G88S°EL) (867195°ZL) DE'6EF’BLE 00°PS8°¥0E STANLTANSIKHE ¥ SHONHATY A0 LAN

Z579F 75'B5L62T LL"509°8 9% "L8E ‘60T 0O'9FT‘SEZ SFINITANEIXE TELOL

V£ 086 PZELT'ES {12°c96'€9) 9L°928L8F 00°000°0FS SHONIATY TEIOL

Jusuido TeaBpey PIoTIUMCIE - [4Z pung

25 9% 75'85L ‘52T LL"G09'8 9% L8E 60T 60" 9FT SEZ STINLIANEAXE TELOL

€5°97 PG 858L°62T L1°G09'8 9% L8601 00" 9PT 5T 000 3dsa Te3ol

0070 00°000°LZT 000 0070 00°600°L2T PUNI TSYRO C} IFSURIL 000°666-000-152

007001 9070 0070 ¥6TEBL'S 00°%8L°8 ssusdyy 188I87UT 000°566-000-T52

00700T  {¥T°0) 000 YT 29E‘6F 00°T9E‘6F TedTOUTIJ-qUaWRITISY 1920 000°T66-000-T52

0070 007000 ‘0% 00°0 0oo 00°000°0F DESUIBAQ BATIRIISTUTIPY 000" 096~000-TSZ

00°00T {007 9L¥) 00°0 00°9LF 0070 TeIBUSs ~ ASUIOITY 000" T0B-000-T52

S9°L08  (BETEOL'OF] LL7G09°8 8£759L°05 00°000°0T TATSE TRNIORIIUCD/ TRUOTSEITOIL 000" 008-000-152

ooo 2deg

SaIN}TPpuUadxy

VE"06 VETELTIES (12296 €9} 9.°923'L8F 00°000°0%S STANTATT TLIOL

¥E06 PZ ELT TS (TZ°z96'€9) 9.°928°L8% 00°000°0%5 000 3deg TEiIOL

00°00T  (80°6EV‘E) 9L798V ‘T 80°6C¥ ‘¢ 00°0 SIUSWISIAUT UO 1SITSIUT 000 ¥32-000-T5Z

0L°68 ZEZT9 68 {16°B¥F "59) 89" LBL FRY 0070007075 SNUIASY KB 000 ¥0F-000-T5Z

000 1dea

gonuonay]

JusumdoTaaspay pI2TJumord — T6Z pUNg

d3dsn {TYHEONAY) (HSVEHIEG) dISYIIONL (TWREONTY)  TYRHMON LADANE THANENY NOILIUD5Hd FHEHAN TD
1909 % HONYTHY FZ0C/TE/€0 HINOW ¥Z0g/TE/E0 FZ-£20¢

ATV TIVAY HOd ALTATLOV HONYTYE diA

Z1/6 isbeg

jusuysxed -dd
g5e :I98n
WY L5260 $Z0C/CT/FC

PZ0Z/TE/€0 ONIANT qOTIAd

LNHWHDEYd 40 ALID d04 1¥0dHY FUALIANHAXHE OGNY HONHAWY



00°00T (oo %e2) 00°0 00°FEZ 00°0 SEINLIANEAXE 3 SHANIATE A0 LHEN

00°¢C 00°0007°0T 00°0 0" 0 00°000°0T SHINLIANAEXT TYIOL

o 00°99L’6 00°0 00" ¥vEE 007000701 SENNIART TYIOL

TORDE FHYI - 667 PULG

00" 00°000°0T 0070 000 00°000°0T SEMALIANAIXE TELOL

200 00°00070T 00°0 0070 00°000°0T 000 3dag TElOL

000 00°000°0T 00°0 000 00°000°0T SNOdURTISISTH 000°556-000-66¢

000 3dea

S2IN3ITpuadxy

25 00°99L6 000 00" %2 00700001 SHANITATT TYIOL

FET 00'99L°6 00°0 00°vEZ 00°00070T 000 3deg TE3lOL

00°00T (00" %£2) 00°0 00 vEZ 00" 0 STIOBUEBTIBOSTH 000" pe8-000-66C

00°0 00°00070T 00°0 0070 007000701 SPUnd I8Y30 Wolg SISFSURIL 000°9.9-000-662

000 adsg

gonusaAsy

QNNd 5FdL - 66F pPUNA

qdasn {TYIMONEY} TYIRMON (ASVHEOET) ESYAEONT  (TVHIONIVY) TYRION IEOANE ARANERY NOIIJI¥ISEd GHGHNE 1D
Ioad ¢ AONYTVE FZ0Z/TE/£0 HINOW ¥20Z/TE/E0 ¥Z2-£202

HTETIVAY

Zi/01  :ebeg

AOd ALTATLOV

AINVIVYE dLA

LNARWHDEYd A0 ALTO ¥Od L¥04ddd EYHOLIANEdXT ONY SANIAEY

¥202/TS/E0 ONIONT dCIMEd

jusugosaredg -ga
g55 :Iesq
WY LS:60 FC0C/CT/¥0



00°00T GFFeE‘EE 00°c5z2 {SF"peE'£E) 00 0 SHINLTANAAKA 3 SHONFATY J0 LAN

6% " Z6E (Z1'6%2'62) 00-0 Zl'efFz ‘6t 00°0007°0T SHANLIANAIRT THIOL

55°8§ CETSHTF 00°5zz L9°%58°S 007000°0T SHNNIATY TYLOL

ipung TETIOWSK S,UrIsisa — TOF pung

AR (Z1-6¥2762) 000 Z1 6%Z ‘6L 007000 0T SHANLIANIAXT TYLOL

67 Z6E (Z1'6FZ°'62) 0070 Z1 672 6¢E 00°00070T 000 adeg Te30L

96°6LE  (99°G66°LE) a0 o 99566 ' LE 00°00C°0T ‘ATDS TRNIDBRIJUCD/ TRUCTISSRIOIJ 000°008-000-TOF

00°00T (ov-gs2’'T) 0070 9F"€£52°1 00°0 saTrddns soueusiutel 3 Itedsy 000°SLL-000-TOF

000 adeq

saaInl Tpusdxy

GG BG £CTSEFT'F 00°62¢ 1995876 00°000°0T SHNNIATT TYIOL

55789 £EGHT ¥ 007522 L5°758°S 00°000°0T 000 adeg TeB3OL

00°00T {(00"1817) 0070 Q0" T8T 00°0 SNODURTTROSTH 000" %¥69-000~T0F

¥L*95 €L 9ZE T 00°62Z L9 EL97S 00 000 0T anusady Te2TdE) pPRInGIIIUe) 000 ¥£9-000-T0%

go0 3dag

SINU=A2T

PUulld [RIIOURSH S,UrI=al3A - T0F puUndg

aasn {TYWHONTY) TY¥WION (ASYHAIDET) ASYIIONT  (TYRMONGY) TYNEOR LADANd GEANANY NOTILATIDSHMA FAIHAN 19
Iodd 3% HONYIVd FZ0Z/TE/E0 HINOW FZ0Z/1E/€0 FZ-£202

ATIYTIEAY

¢L/11  :obeg

H0d ALIAILOW

AONYTYd dLA

P20Z/TE/£0 DNIANT AOTIHA

JusuyoIed :dd
ggg 1IeE[

LNEWHOUYd A0 ALID ¥0d I¥Oddd HU0LIANIAXNA ONY HONBATI Wd L5160 PCO0E/CT/F70



2I°GEZ {68 F0Z'2ET) LGTE09FT 68 FLOZSL 00°0L8°6TE SHENLIANIIXE % SHNNIATT A0 LEN
8£°29 167009186 59°29% ‘961 60°BSSLEDT 00°BST ‘G299 °2 SaNnd TI¥ - SHYNIICNIAIXE TYLOL
FI°T3 Z0"96£ 656G gzre90 112 86°2£9'68£°2 00°620'¢%6°2 SANN TIV¥ - SEONIATY TYIOL
96°8€£9 (€£0°88G8°8LZ} 08°9€0'8%T £0°8LZ ‘0€EE 00°0689 1S STYALTANHLKE » SHANIAEY J0 LEN
6T €k LETTED’'EOT P6TLSE PG £9°BLTECT 00 0TZ ‘582 SETANLTANEIXA T¥IOL
09°%€T  (99°9G5G'9TT) FLUEEE 20T 99 9G¥ 'E£GF 00006 ‘9€E SHANIATY TYIOL
SANNA IEMES - 059 PUnAg
6T €% LETTED'Z9T 6 LGY 7S €9 BLT'EZT 00°0TZ* 682 SEMNLIANIIXE TYLIOL
6T €% LETTE029T 6T LSE RS £9°BLT'EZT 00°01Z ‘582 000 3dsg Te3IOL
000 00°000°0T 00°0 000 00°0000T oguedxy sersiul 000" S66—000-06S
0L°96 00" 6LY 00" FF0 BT 00 PF0FT 00 €25 %1 uoT3RII9Idag 000 °896—-000-06S
000 007000 ‘0% 000 000 00000 0F PEOUISAQ SATIRILS TUTURY 0007 096-000-06%
00°00T  {0Z°FTG) 0C°FLS 0Z° %16 000 SNOJUBTTIVSTH 000°556-000-065
00°0 00 00E ‘0T 060 000 00°00£ ‘0T SI0YDVAJUCD "JUTEH 3 ITedey 000 0E6-000-065
¥8 9L ZL 8VS 000 8270281 00°69€°Z SOTITITIN 0007 0Z26-000-06G
BT %0T {(£Z2°96%) 000 £CTRLETTT 00°8T6°0T spuoeg 3 S0UBRINSUT 000 0T6-000-066
00°00T (BT 6BE’T) 00°0 81 68E°T 0070 butysTTgng ® burtiurtig 000 006-000-084%
000 00°G1G 080 000 00°6TS Tejusy WIoFTuA 000 ST8-000-066§
FLOGT £8°98€°18 207657 ' LE LT ST9789 G0 000°0ST TATSE TENIORIJUON/TRUOTSSSI0L] 000 008-000-065
82766 67 0F1 L6 6T IS F0C 00°G%E BATITPIN 000" CZL-000-065
000 00°58%5 0o 0 000 00°67%G uoriesuaduc] §,I0I0M 000" 02L-000-065
09°G¥ 86°L9T’S 8E°6EG Zotecee’'y 00°005°s uotTsuad 000" 8TL-000-06G
0070 00°004L 00" o 000 00 00L aTUTIONESd 9DURINGUT TO0 9TL-000-068
80795 L9769E'% L6 16E €L 085S 0070865 souBINSUT aFTI/TeiTdeoy 000°9TL-000-068
ZT° 05 6E£°0L8 Gk 58 19°¥L8 00°GPL'T Ayranosg TRIDOS 000" STL~000-065
£9°09 06°69€ ‘s G6EUE0V (T 0L 0EF VT 00°008°¢cZ SwTL TInd - [[oIARg 000" 20L-000-065
000 3deqg
s9xIny Tpuadxy
09 FET  (99°965°9TT) PLTP6T ‘0T 99°96F ‘£S5 007006 “9€€ SHANNIATT TYLOL
09" FET (897955 79TT) [Z Y Ak 999G “E5F 007006 “9EE 000 3dea TBaOL
LT SE S6°68 TS 284 S0°0T8°T 00°006°T SIUSWISSAUL UC 18aI97Ul 000" ¥99-000-06%
T3 ¥L £9°590's8 000 BE PEG ‘6T C 00000 ‘SEE SBOTAADG IOMBE 000°929-000-065
00°00T (£2°2TL'T0Z) £ TILTOE £2°¢TL'102 00°0 SIULID YISO 000" 805-000-06S
000 3dsg
Sanu=aAYT]
AHOA AEMES - 065 PUNI
a=Esn {TYIONTY) TUINE0ON (ASVRADEC) (TYWIORTY} THIRICH LE9ANd THANINY NOTLATYDSHA YIEHAN T
19049 % TINYIVE F202/TE/E0 HLHONW FZOC/TE/ED FZ-£202

dTIYIIVAY

/21 :ebeg

H0d ALIAILDY

HONVTIYY dLXA

¥C0¢/TE/€0 DONIUNA doTddd

ANHNHDOEYd 40 ALID ¥Od L¥OdEY MNITANIAXE 0NV dONTATA

Ju2WuydIedg dgd
§88 Jdo98()

WY LS:60 PC0C/TT/V0



00°00T {gL°092"%2) 9L FOCY 9L70%2'%2 00°0 SAYALIANTAXE % SHANIATT J0 LAN
?1°0C £€°66%'66 LYT9EL ET £3°0007°ST 00 005 FL SHINLIANEANE THIOL
0L"ZS LS 8T sE £%°T0T 8T £ 192 ‘6E 00°00S %L SENNIATY TYLIOL
TYATLSEd YAHWNS MADYIGATANIE - Q57 PULI
FL°0C €E66F'6G L9T9EL'ET L9T000°ST 007005 %L SHANLIANAAXA TYLOL
102 £C 66T 65 L9 9EL’ET £9°000°ST 00 005 ‘%L 000 adeg Te1OL
00" 0 00°000'% go-o oo 00°000"F A3ToTrdng 020°6LL-000-06¢2
000 007 0G4 00°0 000 00~ Q5L sosuadxy MOU§ IBD 9T0 6LL-0C00-062
00°0 00°0G69 “F1 00°0 000 007059 “FT JusuUTEIIDIUL 3HeIs £T0"6LL-000-05C
£8°9 00°9€Z LT 00°0 00°%9Z°T Q07006 78T UOTIBLLISTUTWDY - [EATISS] ZT0"BLL~-D00-057T
6£°FZ9 (LS 9€5 TT) L9 98 'ET L9 9EL’ET 000022 sourg-buTSTRY PULY 800 6LL-000-05Z
0070 00700072 000 0070 0070002 sjusay Aed 3§94 LOOTBLL-000-05T
000 00°006°T 000 00°0 00°006°T BOIY SUSIPTTUD-A2Q "3=0d SO0 T6LL-000-06T
0070 007002 000 0o 00°00% §33BID % S1IY - Awvg Isad PO0T6LL-000-067
0070 007006 ‘g 000 00°0 0070059 ATeM/R08Y - Av(] TRATISSE £00°64LL-000-052
0G0 007008 "€ 00°0 00°0 007008 ‘€ ssusdxy SOUPWICIISI TO0 6LL-000-05C
000 3dsg
sainjTpuadzy
0L"zs LS"8EE‘SE EF TOT ‘8T £¥"19Z°6E 007005 %L SANNIATY TYLOL
0L°25 LS 8ET'SE EF°-T0L“81 £ T9Z 68 00 00§ ‘FL 000 3dsgd TBIOL
000 00°000°€E 000 000 00 000’e STOSURT[52STH 000" 769-000-0%¢
000 007 000"'% 0070 000 00 000’y Jusay TeIoeds Asd 00" §L9-000-06T
666 (0ST09F ‘6T) 05°08E‘6 057096 ST 00 005’9 Butstey pung 100" 6L9-000-06G2
00" 00°000°g 000 000 00600’y uyoldn soe1g 3 PTOIRH-SIURID 200°065-000-05¢
0070 00°0060°0¢€ 0070 000 007000 70¢€ ‘punod SIOWITS § PUTATII-s3UBID 100" 065-000-06¢
00°0 007008 o0 go0-0 007008 *OUl SNOIUBRTTEOSTH 800" §L7-000-05¢
GL'ES 00"o0p ‘L 007006979 0070098 00 00079T sdryszosuods 23eicdio] SO0 SL¥-000~-062
0G°LZT  (00°0GS) 00°05§ 007066 00 000°2 2ATIg pund dTUSISqISK £00°5L¥-000-057
0070 00°00s°¢E 00°0 000 00°00G5'E $934 H{TeM/s0®'y Z00°5.%-000-0G7
LLTES L0 6F8'T E6°0L07T £6°06T'2 00000’y 81JBID 3 S1IY 1007 545-000-0G7
000 2dsqg
ganuanzy]
TYAILSEI dIWANS dISEdgdTINTI - 062 pung
assn (TVRACNAY) THREON (ASYMIDAT) FASYHEEONI  (IWIMONEY) 'I¥IHON LASaNg QHANIHY MOTLATUDSEA HAFWHAN 1D
1904 % AONYIYE PE0Z/TE/E0 HLNOW FZ0Z/TE/€0 20T

AIEVIIVAY

/1 tabeg

J0d ALIAILDY

HONYIV dLA

P20T/TE/E0 DNIONE J0IdEd

LNAWNHIEYd 40 ALID ¥Od 1dO0ddd THNLIANIAXT ANY JNNHAEY

Juswysaed :4gg
ggs 1Io98q

WY LG:60 $202/2T/%0



08'v6£'50T S spund SSED 1IN %S
89°G85 V0T S usodaq Jo s1eoyta) jueg s|puedsy %89'¥ veoe/ce/6
£€°E9T'E0¢E S Hsodaq Jo a1ea111is) jueg sjuedsapy %S0T v¥20Z/6t/6
aneA PIN 67607 60E S AUsoda( jueg a8ejueapy Jswisyuaddo 9%GZ'T
T¢TCSTS S Hsoda( Jo 21edi41143) |EUDIEN PIO %070 ¥20z/S1/6
unowry 1udwIISIAU] JOo odAL uonRn}isu| d1eY 158491 31k Ajniey

v20T ‘1€ Yase
1oday wawisaau|

uswiyaied jo A



KABAm

Haliinssss Reda BulDny AulborRy

2024 MONTHLY PERMITS BY JURISDICTION

JURISDICTION PERMIT CATEGORY # PERMITS | PERMIT REVENUE
COMSTOCK BUILDING 18 3392.00
COMSTOCK ELECTRICAL 19 5106.00
COMSTOCK MECHANICAL 40 8725.00
COMSTOCK PLLUMBING 44 9461.00
COMSTOCK SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 1 100,00

£

_SPECIA

KALAMAZQO BUILDING 14 2297.00
KALAMAZQO ELECTRICAL 13 4904.00
KALAMAZOO MECHANICAL 19 6690.80
KALAMAZOO PLUMBING 11 1460.00
KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 2 250.00
KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - HOMEQWNER 10 605.00
PARCHMENT BUILDING 2 251.00
PARCHMENT ELECTRICAL 2 230.00
PARCHMENT MECHANICAL - 0.00
PARCHMENT PLUMBING 1 105.00
PARCHMENT SPECIAL - JURISDICTION - 0.00
PARCHMENT SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER - 0.00
PINE GROVE BUILDING 6 3883.00
PINE GROVE ELECTRICAL 3 501.00
PINE GROVE MECHANICAL 4 680.00
PINE GROVE PLUMBING 3 668.00
PINE GROVE SPECIAL - JURISDICTION - 0.00
PINE GROVE SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER - 0.00

RICHLAND BUILDING 15 12597.00
RICHLAND ELECTRICAL 13 2897.00
RICHLAND MECHANICAL 14 2911.00
RICHLAND PLUMBING 6 1050.00
RICHLAND SPECIAL - JURISDICTION - 0,00
RICHLAND SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER - 0.00
RICHLAND VILLAGE BUILDING - 0.00
RICHLAND VILLAGE ELECTRICAL - 0.00
RICHLAND VILLAGE MECHANICAL - 0.C0
RICHLAND VILLAGE PLUMBING : 0.00
RICHLAND VILLAGE SPECIAL - JURISDICTION - 0.00

SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER

MARCH 2023

4,116 |.

__MARCH 2023

%2023-YID

276




|
TGRS fea mptiey Sty

2024 MONTHLY PERMITS BY JURISDI N ‘

JURISDICTION PERMIT CATEGORY # PERMITS | PERMIT REVENUE
COMSTOCK BUILDING 39 13168,00
COMSTOCK ELECTRICAL 47 9165.00
COMSTOCK MECHANICAL 115 28835.50
COMSTOCK PLUMBING 61 12405.00
COMSTOCK SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 2 200.00

COMSTOCK SPECIAL - HOMEQWNER 1 55.00
s o .

KALAMAZOO BUILDING 32 5439.00

KALAMAZGO ELECTRICAL 36 B8537.00

KALAMAZOD MECHANICAL 93 17916.80 :
KALAMAZOO PLUMBING 30 4621.00
KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 9 950.00 i
KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER 14 825.00
PARCHMENT BUILDING 5
PARCHMENT ELECTRICAL 5 576.00 i
PARCHMENT MECHANICAL 4 453,00 :
PARCHMENT PLUMBING 1 105.00
PARCHMENT SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 1 100.00 ;
PARCHMENT — SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER 0 0.00 i

RICHLAND

__SPECIAL - HOMEQWNER

PINE GROVE BUILDING 6 3883.00
PINE GROVE ELECTRICAL 12 1892.00 ;
PINE GROVE MECHANICAL 12 1977.00 §
PINE GROVE PLUMBING 5 1152.00 |
PINE GROVE SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 0 0.00
PINE GROVE SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER 1 55.00
- /'9 /,ég; £, i - . i : 7 z { o v & £ ; ,/;/ !
RICHLAND BUILDING 44 26139.00
RICHLAND ELECTRICAL 47 11173.00 i
RICHLAND MECHANICAL 42 8705.00 ;
RICHLAND PLUMBING 26 5171.00 :
RICHLAND SPECIAL - JURISDICTION i ;

RICHLAND VILLAGE BUILDING 1 104.00

RICHLAND VILLAGE ELECTRICAL 1 116,00

RICHLAND VILLAGE MECHANICAL 0 0.06

RICHLAND VILLAGE PLUMBING 1 105,00

RICHLAND VILLAGE SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 0 4.00
9

RICHLAND VILLAGE SPECIAL - HOMEWNER
e -.,,

T T e ]
g N
YD - MARCH 2023 % 2073 - YTD /ole?Sg EY'ITD |

.86.0%

27,525.00

% 2023 - YTD
LA2D DY T

2024 MONTHLY CUMULATIVE TOTALS
# PERMITS REVENUE

204 | $ 38,815.00 JAN
232 | § 56,847.50 FEB
258 1 % 68,773.80 MAR
- % - APR
- $ - MAY
N $ - JUN
- $ - JuL
- $ - AUG
- $ - SEP
- $ - oCT
- $ - NOV
- % - DEC
694 | $ 164,436.30




0$

81

= 2POITU[] ST TITI I ISUNLISAOL)
NV

[enuapisoy] = 28eS)OISEE I
NV

Surpping = odA LAULIDJ JULD]
ANV A 6536511 YT0T/TE/€

ANV NV 00:00:T1 ¥Z0Z/1/5
ré U2OMIOE] PONSSTANB(TINELS]
- sproady [[v uvonemdod
00°15C$
Ayewrwung 130doy
0$ :2dA T, 30,J onfeA "1su07) [EI0 T,
00°15Z$ 2dAy, 304 $99 [0,
ré :2dA T, 30 suwra g rero,
MIAAVT ONIEDOT HIIA AaddINOHE 99 LSOW TOO
soppd 10d [ood Fummmms prmord saoqe 91X 7 TEISTL rwondposa(y oM
0% 005L% ¥COZ/TT/ 0 P ATTAVHY "LANVZNVA 0Z1-6€1-20-90 INHTIO N 90 9Z1-81-+2eld
wnﬁm 12d wsgsAs u..wnﬂwuw Joopqns [[e3su]  uopdposa(] om
0% 00'9L1% PLOT/BL/AD sishg awowaseq siafy A ® HYNNVH HHTHHHA 06202620790 VIONVASH b €11-81-474d
anEA 15U Ter0 ], °og E(] 0SS J0DENYO)) numQ IRqumN] [3058g ssoIppy qof £ D J
L

$20T/10/%0



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE KINDLEBERGER ARTS COMMISSION, HELD ON MONDAY,
MARCH 11™, 2024

1. Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 PM by Robin Madaras.

2. Roll Call
Present: City Manager Nancy Stoddard, Mayor Rob Britigan, Robin Madaras, Julie Heasley,
Nancy Eaton, Joan VanSickler, Caroline Garber, lzzy Weir, Alex Vader, Holly Evans
Absent: None

3. Approval of Minutes from February 12, 2024
A motion was made by Mayor Britigan, supported by Holly Evans, to approve the amended
minutes from the meeting on February 12, 2024.
Aves: b
Nays: 1
Abstain: 1
Motion Carried

4, Old Business

a. Theatre Director Search Update
Izzy reported that Ken Holda signed the contract for theatre director.

b. Theatre Chair Search Update
lzzy reported that she and Alex are collaborating on the theatre chair position as they
have been unable to fill the theatre chair position. Alex reported that starting on
Saturday, March 16 at bingo for bags she will be having a big push for volunteers.
There will be a QR code on the tables at bingo, and the bingo caller will announce that
we are looking for vendors.

¢. Parade Chair Search Update
Alex reported that they have been unable to fill the position of parade chairperson.

d. Food Vendor Chair Search Update
Debbie Graff has backed out of the food vendor chair position and Alex is working on
scheduling food vendors.

e. Public Performance License
Alex reported that she and lzzy are still looking into the public performance license.

5. New Business
a. Festival Directors’ Report
Theatre: lzzy reported that St. Ambrose is reserved for theatre rehearsals. Auditions
will be held the week of May 20t at St. Ambrose.
Food trucks: Alex indicated that she will be managing food trucks.




MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE KINDLEBERGER ARTS COMMISSION, HELD ON MONDAY,
MARCH 11™, 2024 — Page 2

a. Festival Directors’ Report, continued
Chairpersons: Alex reported that the first chairperson meeting was held on Thursday,
March 7.
Trash and Porta Potties: Alex reported that planning is underway for the trash and
porta potties.
b. Financial Report

Budget Discussion
Nancy Stoddard indicated that she is not comfortable with the anticipated
budget of $74,500, and she would like to see it $10,000 less. She will not be
voting yes for this budget to be fiscally conservative/responsible. She would not
like to have the City in a position where the City must cover for overages. Robin
agreed that she finds the budget high as well. She believes that the
miscellaneous revenue line of $3500 is high without knowing where that revenue
is coming from. Volunteer recruitment on Festival Day with fundraising on the
Festival day is |zzy’s idea to make more revenue. Mayor Britigan thinks that the
budget is reasonable.

Mayor Britigan made a motion to approve the budget as written. Nancy Eaton
supported this motion.

Discussion: Mayor Britigan indicated that the 574,500 is a not to exceed number
and that the goal is to come in under budget for the expenses. Nancy Stoddard
indicated that she would like the KAC to have no more than $5000 carried over in
revenue from year to year. Nancy Stoddard indicated that the KAC will know in
May if the Gilmore Grant is awarded.

Ayes: b
Nays: 1
Motion carried.

Financial Report
Robin handed out the KAC financial report as of March 11%, 2024.

¢. Fund Raising Report
Robin indicated that $1960 has come in for Arts and Crafts, $3650 has come in via
corporate sponsorship, $2500 has come in via the membership drive.

Julie shared her fundraising idea of a Silent Disco for October. She will do more leg
work and come back with a proposal with costs/revenue defined.




MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE KINDLEBERGER ARTS COMMISSION, HELD ON MONDAY,
MARCH 11™, 2024 — Page 3

5.

New Business, continued
d. Arts and Crafts Report
Nancy Eaton reported sixty sign-ups for the Arts and Crafts show so far.

Public Comments

Joan VanSickler: Joan asked Nancy for the map for the Arts and Crafts show. Joan asked
the directors for a committee list. Joan asked for the patron fundraising letter. Nancy
Stoddard indicated that she would send it to her.

Member Comments

Julie Heasley: Julie thanked Nancy Eaton for making the cupcakes and thanked Robin for
keeping up with the money and budget.

Nancy Eaton: Nancy indicated that she is looking forward to bingo.

Nancy Stoddard: No comment.

Mayor Britigan: No comment.

Caroline Garber: No comment.

Holly Evans: No comment.

Robin Madaras: No comment

Next Meeting
The next meeting for the KAC will be held on Monday, April 8, 2024, at 6:00 PM.

Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the KAC, Mayor Britigan made a motion to
adjourn the meeting. This was supported by Nancy Eaton. The meeting was adjourned at
7:01 PM.




Fire Department Proposals

Proposal 1
COP keeps its FD  Total = $35,000 + $90,000 + $30,000 = $155,000 (CIP for new
truck would be $50,000 a year for 5 years, for a used vehicle)

COP owns one Engine and keeps it at the COP fire barn or COP would sell
their engine and the TKFD would store one of theirs in the COP fire barn
Capital Improvement Program for $50,000 a year for five years for new
engine

$35,000 a year flat fee paid (Administrative work, reporting, inspections)
Fire/EMS Calls, approximately 300 year, billed at $300 per hour estimated
$90,000

All repairs/replacements will be billed to the COP

Currently, there are $30,000 of maintenance/replacement costs that will
need to be funded in the near future for engine 711.

The engine will be used to attend three parade events: Little League,
Homecoming, and Kindleberger, provided the Police Department approves
the route.

The engine will be at the Wassailing event.

TKFD will use the other open stall in the Fire Barn to store
vehicle/equipment.

The Fire Barn will be cleaned at least 2 times a year by TKFD

2 year contract possible

Proposal 2
COP sells FD to TKFD

Annual service fee 5150,000 with an increase each year by the CPl or COLA
(whichever is the least)

Sell the Engine to TKPD

The Fire Barn remains to belong to the COP

The Fire Barn will be cleaned at least 2 times a year by TKFD

The TKFD will keep at least one engine in the COP Fire Barn

All maintenance/replacement costs will be the responsibility of the TKPD
The COP will not have to save $50,000 a year for a new engine

The engine housed in the COP Fire Barn will have the City of Parchment
name put on it.

The engine housed will be used to attend three parade events: Little
League, Homecoming, and Kindleberger, provided the Police Department
approves the route.

The engine housed will be at the Wassailing event.




Below are the additional considerations for future needs if ownership is retained by City of Parchment of
vehicles and equipment, with a supplement paid on a per call/hour basis
Following items known to need replacement:

¢ Mobile Radio - $3,100

» Portable Radios - $1,000 each (times three for the vehicle) $3,000

¢ Gas Fan - $4,500 i
s Battery Electric Fan - $5,500

e ThermalImaging Camera - $8,500

¢ LED Handlights replaced - $200 (times four for the vehicle) $800

o High Rise Pack - $200

» Carbon Monoxide Monitor - $250 i

Following items which will need replacement, but not identified as immediate need:

e Tires~replaced every 10 years 54,000
¢ EMS equipment expires every 2-3 years $25-$200 per item

Following costs that are typically hidden with manpower being provided by Kalamazoo Township:

e Pump Testing — done by K-Twp Maint.

* Hose Testing — done by K-Twp Maint. & Department

* Small engine repairs (saw, fan, generator doesn’t work) — done by K-Twp Maint.
* Ground ladder testing —~ K-Twp manpower to escort company

* SCBA Bench Testing ~ K-Twp manpower to escort company

* Annual 3" party vehicle inspection — K-Twp manpower to transport vehicle

* [nvestigations of fires

» Building inspections from complaints and for new occupancies

Following costs that are hidden with us providing manpower:

e Training costs both internal and external training
» Salary & part-time hourly along with associated Fringe Benefits

Final considerations:

* Fuel, Qil

* Vehicle & Workman’s Comp Insurance

* Uniform replacement

* Turnout gear replacement

*  Lengthy calls (exceeding first alarm and exceeding one hour}

Two additional costs that will be incurred — First there is an increased cost to administration to track
responses to calls, number of hours spent, invoicing separately for equipment if supplemented with a
Per Call/Per Hour basis.

Secondly, costs which cannot be forecast or envisioned which will arise (Increased PPE costs of N-95's
during COVID; additional EMS equipment needed with changing state mandates; increased need for
Terrorist training following 9/11etc...)




PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

THIS PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into and made

effective as of this day of , 2023 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the CITY
OF PARCHMENT, a Michigan municipal corporation (““Seller’”), and PARCHMENT VEGETABLE
PRODUCTS, INC., a corporation (“Purchaser™),

Backeround

Purchaser desires to acquire from Seller, and Seller desires to convey to Purchaser, an
approximately three (3) acre parcel located in the City of Parchment, County of Kalamazoo, State of
Michigan and legally desecribed in attached Exhibit “A” (the “Property™). The parties desire to
consummate such transactions in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein.

Agreement

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL COVENANTS AND
CONDITIONS SET FORTH HEREIN THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1. Property. Purchaser shall purchase and Seller shall convey the Property in accordance
with the terms and conditions set forth herein. The Property shall include all improvements and fixtures
located upon the land, all easements that affect the land, and all rights to divisions under the Michigan
Land Division Act (if any).

2. Purchase Price. 'The purchase price for the Property shall be Fifteen Thousand and
No/100 Dollars ($15,000.00) (the “Purchase Price™). Purchaser and Seller acknowledge and agree that
the amount of the Purchase Price is partial consideration for Purchaser’s agreement to be bound by the
Declaration and the Restrictions therein (each as defined below) following the Closing. The Purchase
Price, less the Deposit defined below, and adjusted by other charges and credits as set forth herein, shall
be delivered at Closing in immediately available funds subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

3. Deposit. Purchaser shall deliver to Chicago Title Insurance Company, 941 W. Milham
Ave,, Portage, MI 49024 (“Title Company™) the sum of Five Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($5,000.00)
by wire transfer or certified, cashier’s or corporate check (the “Deposit™) within three (3) business days of
the execution of this Agreement by both parties. The Deposit shall be credited against the Purchase Price
at Closing.

4. Investigation Period. The “Investigation Period” shall commence on the Effective Date
and shall expire sixty (60) days after the Effective Date at 5:00 p.m. eastern time. During the
Investigation Period, Purchaser and/or its agents and representatives shall have the right to enter the
Property and have the Property and improvements located thereon inspected, evaluated, analyzed, tested,
appraised and/or assessed for any matter whatsoever, including but not limited to, condition of
improvements including structure, plumbing and mechanical systems and the presence of wood
destroying insects; survey and boundaries of the Property including any easements serving the Property;
the service agreements related to the Property; market value; soil conditions; location of flood plains;
presence of wetlands and necessary mitigation, if any; storm water drainage systems; presence of
environmental contamination; health and safety conditions; access to utilities; access to public roads;
signage; zoning; compliance with laws, codes and ordinances and any other matter desired by Purchaser.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent Purchaser desires to undertake envirommental,
wetland or soils investigations of the Property during the Investigation Peried (collectively, the

50308283.4




“Environmental Assessments™), the parties agree that the Environmental Assessments shall be
undertaken and performed by an environmental consultant that is approved by Seller in writing. The
parties further agree that the Environmental Assessments shall not include any soil borings, groundwater
testing, monitoring wells or invasive sampling or testing techniques without the prior written consent of
Seller. Purchaser will not initiate contact with local, state or federal environmental agencies, except
through Seller. If, for any reason, this Agreement terminates or if the Property is not transferred to
Purchaser for any reason, the results, conclusions, reports and information regarding the environmental
 condition of the Property shall be held strictly confidential by Purchaser and Purchaser’s consultants and
may only be disclosed to any third party after obtaining the prior written consent of Seller. Purchaser
shall indemnify and hold Seller harmless from any and all claims, actions, losses, liabilities that arise
from the unauthorized disclosure of any such information. The parties agree this obligation and
indemnity shall survive termination of the Agreement.

Purchaser agrees to pay all costs and expenses associated with the Purchaser’s inspections
conducted pursuant to this Section 4, and Purchaser further agrees to repair and restore any damage to the
Property and/or to any portions thereof resulting from or arising out of the Purchaser’s investigations if
the transaction contemplated by this Agreement does not close. Purchaser and Seller agree to work
together in good faith to determine the timing of Purchaser’s inspections to minimize interference with
the operation of Seller’s business at the Property.

In the event that, after conducting its investigations, Purchaser desires not to proceed with the
Purchase of the Property, Purchaser shall have the right to terminate this Agreement by delivery of
written notice of termination to Seller and the Title Company prior to the expiration of the Investigation
Period (“Termination Notiece™). In the event Purchaser terminates this Agreement pursuant to its rights
under this Section, and the Termination Notice is delivered before the expiration of the Investigation
Period, then, upon Purchaser’s return or destruction of the Property Information (as defined below) as
directed by Seller, the full amount of the Deposit shall be promptly refunded to Purchaser. Upon such
termination, all rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall immediately and forever terminate
with the exception of those rights and obligations that are expressly intended to survive termination of
this Agreement.

5. Title and Survey Matters.

A. Within three (3) business days after the Effective Date, Purchaser may order a
commitment (the “Title Commitment”) for the Property from the Title Company to issue to Purchaser, at
the Closing, an ALTA owner’s title insurance policy in the amount of the Purchase Price (the “Title
Insurance Policy”), and with such endorsements as Purchaser may require, to the extent reasonably
available (any such endorsements shall be at Purchaser’s sole cost and expense), free and clear of any
liens and encumbrances except for (1) taxes and/or assessments, not yet due and payable, (ii) rights of the
public to any portion of the Property lying within the bounds of any street, road, alley or highway, (iii)
matters that would be revealed or disclosed by an accurate ALTA/NSPS survey of the Property, (iv) all
building and zoning laws and ordinances and municipal codes and regulations, and any state, county or
federal regulations affecting the Property, and (v) matters set forth in the Title Commitment not objected
to by Purchaser, as permitted hereunder, or objected to by Purchaser but waived by Purchaser or the Title
Company or insured over by the Title Company (collectively, the “Permitted Exceptions™).

B. Within three (3) business days after the Effective Date, Purchaser may order a survey of
the Property in such form as Purchaser may desire (the “Survey™) at Purchaser’s sole cost and expense
which Purchaser shall cause to also be certified to Seller and to the Title Company.

C. If written objection to title and/or Survey matters is made by Purchaser, no later than
fourteen (14) days prior to the expiration date of the Investigation Period, that the title and/or Survey is
2

503082834



not acceptable to Purchaser, Seller shall have ten (10) days from the date that it received written notice of
each of the particular defects (with reasonable specificity), in order, in Seller’s sole and absolute
discretion, to notify Purchaser of its proposed cure for each defect or to provide Purchaser with a revised
Title Commitment evidencing that such defects have been remedied and/or that at Closing the Title
Company shall insure over the same, it being expressly understood that Seller shall have no obligation to
remedy any such defect or have the Title Company insure over any such defect. If Seller is unable or
unwilling to obtain such revised Title Commitment or does not elect to cure such defects within such ten
(10) day period, Purchaser shall have the option (i) to proceed with the purchase of the Property without
any reduction in the Purchase Price, in which event such defects or objections will be deemed Permitted
Exceptions or (ii) to terminate this Agreement by delivery of written notice of termination to Seller and
the Title Company prior to the expiration of the Investigation Period and, upon Purchaser’s return or
destruction of the Property Information as directed by Seller, Purchaser shall promptly receive a refund of
the Deposit and thereafter Purchaser and Seller shall be relieved of any and all obligations and liability
under this Agreement (except for any surviving obligations under this Agreement). Failure of Purchaser

to timely deliver such written notice of termination to Seller shall be deemed an election by Purchaser to -

choose the foregoing option (i).

6. Property Information. Within five (5) business days after the Effective Date, Seller
agrees to deliver to Purchaser the documents and materials listed on Exhibit “B” attached hereto
(collectively, the “Property Information™). Notwithstanding the foregoing, Purchaser acknowledges
and agrees that it is relying exclusively on its own investigations and due diligence of the Property in
relation to determining whether it will exercise its right to terminate this Agreement prior to the expiration
of the Investigation Period. The parties further acknowledge and agree that Seller makes o
representations or warranties regarding the accuracy or completeness of the Property Information and that
Purchaser agrees it is not, and shall not, rely on the Property Information and that Purchaser is relying
exclusively on its own investigations, due diligence and information.

7. Closing, The sale shall be closed at the offices of the Title Company, or in escrow by
mail, on a mutually agreeable date on or before the date which is fifteen (15) days afier the expiration of
the Investigation Period, subject to a day-for-day extension to accommodate any permitted cure, response
or similar period as expressly provided herein (the “Closing Deadline™). At Closing, Seller shall make
the Seller Deliveries described herein and Purchaser shall make the Purchaser Deliveries described herein.

8. Seller’s Closing Deliveries. At the Closing, Seller shall deliver to Title Company for
delivery to Purchaser, the following items:

Al A Covenant Deed conveying to Purchaser title to the Property, subject to the
Permitted Exceptions, executed and acknowledged by Seller in recordable form, along with a Real Estate
Transfer Tax Valuation Affidavit.

B. An affidavit of ownership as is acceptable to Seller in its commercially
reasonable discretion and as the Title Company may reasonably require to remove its standard printed
exceptions from the Title Insurance Policy relating to, among other things, construction liens and rights of
parties in possession, but not with respect to matters of survey.

C. A certificate in such form as may be required by the Internal Revenue Service
pursuant fo Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the regulations issued

pursuant thereto, certifying as to the non-foreign status of a transferor.

D. Such other documents, including a signed closing statement, as are necessary and
approgpriate for the consummation of this transaction by Seller,

50308283.4




0. Purchaser’s Closing Deliveries. At the Closing, Purchaser shall deliver to the Title
Company for delivery to Seller, the following items:

A. The Purchase Price adjusted by the Deposit and other credits and debits as set
forth on the closing statement to be prepared by Title Company.

B. A certificate certifying that all of Purchaser’s representations and warranties
contained in this Agreement are true and correct.

C. Such other documents, including a signed closing statement, as are necessary and
appropriate for the consummation of this transaction by Purchaser.

10. Closing Costs and Prorations. Seller shall pay (i) all transfer and/or conveyance taxes
assessed in connection with the Closing, (ii) the base premium for the Title Insurance Policy (excluding
temoval of standard exceptions and the cost of any endorsements), (iii) one-half of the Title Company's
closing fee in connection with this transaction and (iv} all costs related to Seller’s professionals and
consultants. Purchaser shall pay (A) all recording costs for recordation of the Covenant Deed, (B) all
costs and expenses associated with Purchaser’s inspections conducted pursuant to this Agreement and
Purchaser’s professionals and consultants, {C) the cost of the Title Company’s search and examination
fees, the Title Commitment, and any endorsements issued with the Title Insurance Policy, (D) the costs
related to Purchaser’s lender, if any, including any lender’s policy of title insurance, (E) the cost of the
Survey, if any, and (F) one-half of the Title Company’s closing fee connection with this transaction.

Seller shall be responsible for and will pay at or prior to Closing all ad valorem property taxes
and installments of special assessments that first came due and payable in calendar years prior to Closing,
Ad valorem property taxes and installments of special assessments that first come due and payable in the
year of Closing shall be prorated as of the Closing Date on a calendar year basis.

Other regular and customary costs and expenses related to the Property shall also be prorated
based on the date of Closing. To the extent appropriate for the adjustment of the foregoing amounts to
achieve the requirements of this Section, the terms of this Section shall survive Closing.

11. Representations and Warranties of Seller. Seller hereby represents and warrants to
Purchaser, that as of the date hereof, and on the date of Closing:

A. Seller has the right, power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to sell
the Property in accordance with the terms hereof. Seller has the right, power and authority to enter into
all of the agreements, assignments and other documents contemplated by this Agreement. The
individuals signing this Agreement and all other documents executed or to be executed pursuant hereto on
behalf of Seller are and shall be duly authorized to sign the same on Seller's behalf and to bind Seller
thersto.

B. There are no leases, occupancy agreements, rights of first refusal, rights of first
offer, or options in effect with respect to the Property to which Seller is a party.

C. The execution and delivery of, and the performance of all obligations under this
Agreement by Seller do not and will not require any consent or approval of any person or entity, and do
not and will not result in a breach of any agreement or instrument to which Seller is a party.

12. Representations and Warranties of Purchaser. Purchaser hereby represents and warrants
to Seller, that as of the date hereof, and on the date of Closing:

503082834




SN 1, VoY ey T3 N O

A. Purchaser has the full power and authority to execute, deliver and petform this
Agreement and all of Purchaser’s obligations under this Agreement; and

B. The individuals signing this Agreement and all other documents executed or to
be executed pursuant hereto on behalf of Purchaser are and shall be duly authorized to sign the same on
Purchaser’s behalf and to bind Purchaser thereto.

13. Indemnification.

A Seller agrees to indemnify and hold Purchaser harmless from and against any and
all liabilities, claims, demands, and expenses, of any kind or nature, including but not limited to, all
expenses related thereto, including, without limitation, court costs and attorney’s fees for matters arising
from or related to the inaccuracy or breach of any of Seller’s representations and warranties up to an not
to exceed $20,000.

B. Purchaser agrees to indemnify and hold Seller harmless from and against any and
all liabilities, claims, demands, and expenses, of any kind or nature, including but not limited to, all
expenses related thereto, including, without limitation, court costs and attorney’s fees for matters arising
from or related to the inaccuracy or breach of any of Purchaser’s representations and warranties up to and
not to exceed $20,000.

C. In the event either party hereto receives notice of a claim or demand for which
the other party may be entitled to indemnification pursuant to this Section, such party shall promptly give
notice thereof to the other party. The indemnifying party shall immediately take such measures as may be
reasenably required to properly and effectively defend such claim, and may defend same with counsel of
its own choosing and approved by the other party (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or
delayed). In the event the indemnifying party refuses to defend such claim or fails to properly and
effectively defend such claim, then the other party may defend such claim with counsel of its own
choosing at the expense of the indemnifying party. In such event, the indemmnified party may settle such
claim without the consent of the indemnifying party. It is expressly stipulated, covenanted, and agreed
that the provisions of this Section shall survive the Closing for a period of 90 days.

14. Condemnation: Casualty. Purchaser shall have the right to terminate this Agreement if
any part of the Property is destroyed without fault of Purchaser or any part of the Property is taken or is
threatened to be taken by eminent domain. Purchaser shall give written notice of Purchaser’s election to
terminate this Agreement within ten (10) business days after Purchaser receives written notice from Seller
of any such damage or threatened condemnation. In the event of such a termination by Purchaser, upon
Purchaser’s return or destruction of the Property Information as directed by Seller, the Title Company
shall promptly refund to Purchaser the Deposit and the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder
shall terminate, with the exception of those rights and obligations that are expressly intended to survive
termination of this Agreement.

15. Default and Remedies.

A Purchaser’s Default; Seller’'s Remedy. If Purchaser breaches this Agreement,
then Seller may terminate this Agreement by written notice thereof to Purchaser and the Deposit shall
promptly be paid to Seller as liquidated damages, as Seller’s sole and exclusive remedy, and upon
payment to Seller of the Deposit, this Agreement and all rights and obligations of the parties shall
terminate, with the exception of those rights and obligations that are expressly intended to survive
termination of this Agreement. The parties agree that it would be impracticable and extremely difficult to
ascertain the actual damages suffered by Seller as a result of Purchaser’s failure to complete the purchase
of the Property and that under the circumstances existing as of the date of this Agreement, the liquidated

5




damages provided for in this Section represents a reasonable estimate of the damages which Seller will
incur as a result of such failure. The parties acknowledge that the payment of such liquidated damages is
not intended as a forfeiture or penalty but is intended to constitute liquidated damages to Seller.

B. Seller’s Default; Purchaser’s Remedies. If Seller materially breaches this
Agreement, then Purchaser shall, as its sole remedy, have the right to either (i) terminate this Agreement
by written notice thereof to Seller, in which event Purchaser shall, upon Purchaser’s return or destruction
of the Property Information as directed by Seller, receive a refund of the Deposit, and neither party shall
have any further liability under this Agreement except for liability which expressly survives termination
as provided herein, or (ii) seek specific performance of Seller’s obligations hereunder. Purchaser hereby
unconditionally and irrevocably waives, to the greatest extent permitted by law, any claim for monetary
damages against Seller arising out of a default by Seller hereunder, which waiver will survive the
termination of this Agreement. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, in the event
Purchaser has not commenced an action for specific performance pursuant to the foregoing subclause (ii)
within thirty (30) days after the date of Seller’s default, Purchaser shall be deemed to have waived its
tight to pursue and obtain specific performance pursuant to such foregoing subclause (ii).

C. Attomneys” Fees. The prevailing party in any legal proceeding brought under or
with relation to this Agreement or transaction shall be entitled to recover court costs, reasonable attorneys'
fees and all other litigation expenses from the non-prevailing party.

16. Sale and Assignment of Agreement. Purchaser shall not assign this Agreement or its
rights hereunder without the prior written consent of Seller, which consent may be withheld in its sole
discretion. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Purchaser shall have the right to assign its rights in this
Agreement, without Seller’s consent, to an affiliate of Purchaser that is owned, in whole or in majority
part, and controlled by Purchaser or Purchaser’s principal owners. Notwithstanding any assignment,
Purchaser shall not be released from any, and Purchaser shall cause all, of its obligations hereunder to be
performed, including, without limitation, Purchaser’s agreement to be bound by the Declaration and the
Restrictions therein following the Closing. Purchaser shall provide Seller not less than three (3) business
days’ notice of any such assignment, such notice to include the name and signature block of the assignee
and reasonable evidence of the relationship of Purchaser to such assignee.

17. AS-IS. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, Purchaser
hereby expressly acknowledges and agrees that Purchaser has or will have, prior to the end of the
Investigation Period, thoroughly inspected and examined the Property to the extent deemed necessary by
Purchaser in its sole discretion in order to enable Purchaser to evaluate the purchase of the Property.
Purchaser hereby further acknowledges and agrees that Purchaser is relying solely upon its examination
and evaluation of the Property and that Purchaser is purchasing the Property on an “AS IS”, “WHERE
IS” and “WITH ALL FAULTS” basis, without representations or warranties {other than the limited
representations and warranties set forth in Section 11 above), express or implied, of any kind or nature
including, but not limited to, the zoning of the Property, the tax consequences to Purchaser, the physical
condition of the Property, environmental compliance, governmental approvals and compliance of the
Property with applicable rules, regulations, ordinances and statutes. Purchaser hereby waives and
relinquishes all rights and privileges arising out of, or with respect to or in relation to, any representations
or warranties (other than the Himited representations and warranties set forth in Section 11 above),
whether express or implied, which may have been made or given, or which may be deemed to have been
made or given, by Seller. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Purchaser hereby further
acknowledges and agrees that warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose are
excluded from the transactions contemplated hereby, as are any warranties arising from a course of
dealing or usage or trade, and that, except as expressly provided in Section 11 above, Seller has not
represented or warranted, and Seller does not hereby represent or warrant, that the Property now or in the
future will meet or comply with the requirements of any health, environmental or safety code or

6

50308283.4




regulation of the United States of America, the State of Michigan or any other authority or jurisdiction.
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing and subject to the limited representations and warranties
set forth in Section 11 above, in the event Purchaser actually takes title to the Property or any portion
thereof, Purchaser hereby assumes all risk and agrees that Seller shall not be liable to Purchaser (or
Purchaser’s successors and assigns) for, and Purchaser hereby expressly waives any claims it may have
now or in the future against Seller on account of, any special, direct, indirect, consequential or any other
damages resulting or arising from or relating to the ownership, use, condition, location, maintenance,
repair or operation of the Property.

18. Miscellaneous.
A, TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE OF THIS AGREEMENT.

B. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the state in
which the Property is located.

C. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which,
when taken together, shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument. Executed copies of this
Agreement may be delivered between the parties via electronic mail.

D. Should any provision of this Agreement require judicial interpretation, it is
agreed that the court interpreting or construing the same shall not apply a presumption that the terms
hereof shall be more strictly construed against one party by reason of the rule of construction that a
document is to be construed more strictly against the party who itself or through its agent prepared the
same, it being agreed that the agents of all parties have participated in the preparation hereof.

E. This Agreement supersedes all prior discussions and agreements between Seller
and Purchaser with respect to the conveyance of the Property and all other matters contained herein and
constitutes the sole and entire agreement between Seller and Purchaser with respect thereto. This
Agreement may not be modified or amended unless such amendment is set forth in writing and signed by
both Seller and Purchaser.

F. For purposes of this Agreement, all notices shall be in writing and shall be
addressed to the party or parties being notified at the address set forth below or at such other address as a
party may from time to time designate in writing to the other party.

To Seller: City of Parchment
Attn: Parchment City Manager
650 S Riverview Drive
Parchment, MI 49004
Email: manager@parchment.org

To Purchaser: Parchment Vegetable Products, Inc.
Atin; Dan Bussema
839 Commerce Lane , Office #4353
Parchment, MI 49004
Email:

All netices to any party required or permitted hereunder may be given by reputable overnight delivery, all
charges prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or by email, at the address set
forth above, and will be deemed effective three (3) days after mailing, one (1) business day after the date
sent by reputable overnight delivery, provided, that it is sent for and guarantees next business day

7

50308283.4



delivery, and/or on the day sent by email, provided, that the sending party does not receive an error or
other message indicating the email was undeliverable. Notices may be sent by counsel to Purchaser or
Seller on behalf of Purchaser or Seller, as applicable.

G. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and bind the parties hereto and their
respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and permitted assigns.

H. If any date of performance hereunder falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal
holiday, such date of performance shall be deferred to the next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or
legal holiday.

L In case one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any
reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect by a court of competent jurisdiction,
such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions hereof and this
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision is severed and deleted
from this Agreement.

1. Purchaser and Seller represent and warrant to the other that there has been no
direct or indirect dealings with any real estate brokers, salesmen or agents in connection with this
Property, or the transactions contemplated herein. Each party to this Agreement shall indemnify, defend,
and hold harmless the other party from and against any and all real estate brokerage commissions, finder's
fees, or other like charges due or claimed to be due to any broker who dealt with the party from whom
indemnification is sought with respect to the transaction contemplated hereunder. This subsection shall
survive the Closing.

K. If either party wishes to include the transaction contemplated by this Agreement
in a Section 1031 like kind exchange transaction, that party shall give the other party written notice of that
intention. The other party shall cooperate with the party that wishes to undertake a Section 1031
transaction, at no cost to the other party. The other party will not be required to take title to any other
property that is included in the Section 1031 transaction or to delay the closing of the transaction
contemplated by this Agreement in order to accommodate the Section 1031 transaction.

36. Restrictive Covenant. Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that Seller will, prior to
Closing, prepare, file and record a Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions and Option to Repurchase
substantially in the form attached as Exhibit “C” hereto and made a part hereof (the “Declaration™). The
Declaration will impose certain restrictive covenants upon the Property requiring, among other things,
Purchaser, its fransferees, successors, assigns, licensees and/or lessees and any future owners and/or users
of the Property to restrict the use, operation, transfer, lease or license of the Property to the following uses
and any other uses that may be expressly permitted by the Declaration:

Indoor and urban farming for the production of vegetable products
(collectively, the “Restrictions”). Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that the Restrictions shall run with
the land and may be enforceable by Seller, its successors or assigns in accordance with the terms of the

Declaration.

Signatures on following page

503082834




IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement to be effective as of

the Effective Date.

503082834

SELLER:

CITY OF PARCHMENT,
a Michigan municipal corporation

By:
Name:
Its:

PURCHASER:

PARCHMENT VEGETABLE PRODUCTS, INC.,
a corporation

By:
Name:
Its:




EXHIBIT “A”

THE PROPERTY

Pareel 3906-03-226-040

{ommenicing ot the Northwest corner of Seeiion 2, T 2 8., B, 11 W, City of Parchment, Kalamazes
County, Michigan; thence Beuth 89°-13"49" Fast alung the Norih line of said Section, 238,78 feet;
thenes Soull 00°46"-117 Wegt, 33,00 foot; thencs Sourh 5253329 Fast, 18513 foet: thenoe South
3722018 Weds, 59055 feet: thence Southwesterly 10056 feet alotnr g aorve 1o the Teft with o radius of
192,41 feet and & chond benring South 15°44°-17" West, 100,55 feet; thencs Soathwesterly 508.63 Fot
ainrg 2 sutve to the left with 4 tadios of 182241 feet and 2 chord beating Souih 265.31%37° West,
S07.15 feet for the place ofbegining of the laod herrinafter doserdbed: thenee continulig Seutwerterty
212,27 feet alang a ciivve to theleft with 2 sadius of 192241 feot od 4 chiord bearing South 15%46%5§"
Wiest, 212.16 feet 16 the Ensterly extension of the Northerly line of Amended Flat of Blocks 1, 6, 13 and
16, Lotw 1,2, 8,8, 10 of Bloeled, Lot 7 of Block 3, Lota 1, 2, 4, 5,6 of Block 4, Lots 1-19 of Blook 5,
Luts 112 of Block §, Vacated Parts of Bverett Lane, Maiden Lane, Gallup Avenne, Sanford Street and
Ruobert Lage of the Revised Plat of (lendale, o5 recorded in Uiber 42 of Plats on Page 49, Kalamzzoo
Ceamty Reoords; theooe North 8924757 West thereon, 604,74 foet, thence Morth 1254555 Wifest,
150.89 feel; thence Nogth 00°.48°00" Bast, 5793 feet; theace South 89°47%-57" Bagt, 594.08 fect 10 the
piace ofbeginning, Contaistog 3.0 Actey, ore or [ets

10
50308283.4




MA [
e

LU s i oot

il AT, T T TG AP VG G o
T e
S s e
e S o S vt
e e jrtte i

R Wb

e

ez

L e Ty T AR Rt i e

e T A S e i e O R

R kS 1 T Y e s B w3 A s B e e

o T U U o B PR LA

e e B L e e sy
A

P —
A e
R R R
R e B s Sbye o ey b 0 R T

i b T prne
B B e A e

ST me e TR
L
e

B PR R,

. 5

f?ﬂ! i

AW Mfmwmmgw.

H b b T oy

11

503082834



EXHIBIT “B”

PROPERTY INFORMATION

- That cerfain Baseline Environmental Assessment, prepared by Envirologic Environmental
Consulting (since acquired by Fishbeck), dated December 16, 2019.

12

50308283.4



EXHIBIT “C”

DECLARATION

13
50308283.4




DRAFT. SUBTECTG REVIEWARD DISCUSSON

DECLARATION OF COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS
AND OPTION TO REPURCHASE

THIS DECLARATION (this "Restriction") is made as of
, 2024, by CITY OF:PARCHMENT, a Michigan municipal corporation, whose
address is 650 Riverview Drive, Parchment, Michigan 49004 ("Declarant™).

Background

A Declarant is the owner in fee simple of the lands commonly known as
[ . ], Parchment, Michigan and more particularly described on the attached
Exhibit "A" (defined below as the "Property").

B. Declarant has agreed to sell the Property to Parchment Vegetable Products, Inc., a
[ ] corporation (“Purchaser”) pursuant to that certain Purchase and Sale
Agreement dated as of | ] (the “Agreement”) between Declarant and Purchaser, which
Agreement also provides that the amount of the Purchase Price (as defined in the Agreement) is
partial consideration for Purchaser’s agreement to be bound by this Restriction.

C. From and after the date of this Restriction, the Property is to be renovated and used
as a facility for indoor and urban farming for the production of vegetable products (the “Use”) in
the manner, and subject to the covenants, terms and conditions set forth herein.

Restriction

NOW, THEREFORE, Declarant hereby publishes, declares and makes known to all
intending purchasers and future owners of the Property, that the same shall be subject to the
following conditions, restrictions, covenants and agreements, which shall be incorporated by
reference in all deeds of conveyance and contracts and shalt run with the land and bind all grantees
in the Property, including their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns:

1. Renovation of Property. The Property shall be renovated to accommodate the Use
and approximately in accordance with the site plan and other plans and specifications attached
hereto as Exhibit "B" (the "Renovation"). As such, the Property (and facility to be renovated

537180050368634



thereon) may only be used for the Use and storage, distribution and office purposes that are related
to the Use. The Renovation shall be completed (as evidenced by a permanent certificate of
occupancy), and the Property shall reopen to the public for business, no later than twelve (12)
months from the date of this Restriction. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if, despite using
commercially reasonable efforts, the property owner is unable to complete the Renovation and
reopen to the public for business within such twelve (12) month period as a direct result of any
delays not caused by the actions or omissions of the property owner or that were not within the
reasonable control of the property owner (for example, any delays in obtaining third party
approvals that were timely sought by the property owner), then such twelve (12) month period will
be extended on a day for day basis until the property owner completes the Renovation and reopens
to the public for business, not to exceed eighteen (18) months from the date of this Restriction. No
new building, facility, structure or other improvement, or change of use, shall be commenced or
established prior to obtaining the prior written approval of Declarant and in accordance with the
terms of this Restriction.

2. ‘Change of Use to Facility. The property owner may submit a written request to the
Declarant to change the Use to another permiited use (“Change Request™). Any Change Request
shall contain a detailed description of the desired permitted use together with any additional
documentation or information that Declarant deems necessary or appropriate. Declarant will use
reasonable efforts to issue an approval (subject to any terms and/or conditions that are acceptable
to Declarant in its sole discretion}), denial or comments within twenty-one (21) days after its receipt
of any Change Request. In the event Declarant approves any Change Request, Declarant and the
property owner shall promptly execute and record (at the property owner’s expense) an amendment
to this Restriction which reflects the permitted change of use (subject to any terms and/or
conditions that are acceptable to Declarant in its sole discretion} and which is otherwise mutually
acceptable to Declarant and the property owner. Any permitted change of use of the Property shall
at all times comply with the terms and conditions of this Restriction (as it may be amended), other
restrictive covenants or conditions (if any), and applicable laws, statutes, codes, ordinances and
planned unit development plans, including without limitation the terms and conditions of any
permits or approvals related to the Renovation.

3. Option to Repurchase. The parties acknowledge and agree that Declarant is
transferring the Property for the purpose of the Renovation and establishment of the Use. As such,
to the extent that the Renovation is not complete and the Property has not reopened to the public
for business within the twelve (12) month period (as it may be extended) provided in Section 1
above, then Declarant shall have an option to re-purchase the Property from the Purchaser or any
subsequent property owner for the Purchase Price that Declarant received when it transferred the
Property to Purchaser. The terms of such purchase shall be otherwise based on the terms of the
Agreement with the exception that Declarant shall be "Purchaser"” and Purchaser or any subsequent
property owner shall be "Seller” for purposes of such option and Purchaser or any subsequent
property owner shall be responsible for removal and release of any liens, mortgages, judgments or
financial encumbrances against the Property. Declarant shall exercise the option by providing
written notice to Purchaser or any subsequent property owner at any time after the expiration of
the twelve (12) month period (as it may be extended) set forth above.

53718(150368634




4.

Additional Restrictions. In addition to the Use and other covenants and restrictions

set forth in Sections 1 and 2 of this Restriction, the Property shall also be subject to the following
restrictions on use:

()

(it)

5.

The Property shall be restricted solely to uses that are not exempt, including any
so-called “partial exemption” and whether such uses are exempt (or partially
exempt) under applicable laws, regulations, rules, and/or programs currently
existing or hereafter enacted, from the payment of ad valorem taxes, assessments
and other governmental costs and charges (the “Property Taxes™) generally
applicable to real property where the Property is located. For example, since the
following types of uses are generally exempt from Property Taxes, the Property
shall not be used for, and shall be restricted against use as (but not limited
to): hospitals, clinics or medical centers; churches, religious organizations or
places of worship; governmental buildings, government agencies, governmental
authorities and/or government related uses; schools, colleges, and/or educational
related uses; philanthropic organizations, charities and/or non-profit corporations;
unless such uses or users enter into (A} an agreement to pay subject to Property

Taxes or (B), if applicable to such uses or users, a Payment in Lieu of Taxes

(PILOT) agreement, in either case that is approved by Declarant.
The Property is restricted against use any and all marijuana and/or cannabis uses or
related uses, including without limitation, dispensaries, grow facilities and/or

provisioning centers.

Remedies.! Declarant shall have the right to specifically enforce, by any proceeding

at law or equity, all restrictions, conditions, covenants, reservations, now or hereafter imposed by
the provisions of this Restriction. Declarant shall also have the right recover all of its damages that
arise from any breach of this Restriction (including any and all terms and conditions contained
herein), including, without limitation, all fees (including actual attorneys’ fees and any other
professional fees), costs (including court costs) and expenses of enforcement.

6.

Term. The term of this Restriction shall run with the land. Notwithstanding the

foregoing, the term of the option to repurchase set forth in Section 3 shall expire, and all rights
and obligations thereunder shall be deemed forever released and discharged, upon the completion
of the Renovation in accordance with the terms of this Restriction (including without limitation
in compliance with the plans and specifications that are approved by Declarant as contemplated
herein) and the establishment of the Use within the twelve (12) month period (as it may be
extended) provided in Section 1 above.

Signature line on following page

INOTE TO BRAFT: Full scope of available remedies to be discussed with the City of Parchment.

537180050368634




In Witness Whereof, the Declarant has executed and imposed this Restriction on the date set
forth above.
CITY OF PARCHMENT

a Michigan municipal corporation

By:
Its:
STATE OF MICHIGAN )
COUNTY OF ;
- The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me in County,
Michigan, on , by , as of

the City of Parchment, a Michigan municipal corporation, on behalf of the corporation.

State of Michigan
County of
My Commission Expires
Acting in the County of

Prepared by and Return to after recording:
Honigman, LLP

Attn.. J. Patrick Lennon, Esq.

650 Trade Centre Way

Suite 200

Kalamazoo, Michigan 49002

537180\50368634




EXHIBIT "A" TO RESTRICTIONS

PROPERTY

Poreel A06-03-226-040

Cormrencing st the Northwest corner of Section 2, T, 28, B 11w, ity of Parchment, Kalamesee
Courity, Micligan; therce South 89713497 East along the North Hne of soid Bection, 238,78 feel;
thenee South 00%-46°-1 1 West, 33,00 feut; thenes South 52733297 Enst, 185,13 feet; thence South

37020515 Wast, 60HL55 Foet; thence Southwesterly 109,56 feet along 8 curvefo the Feft with 8 radius of

192241 fert and @ chord bearing Sooth 33°44°-1 7 West, 109,55 fuet; thence Southwesterly 508,63 feet
along 4 curye o the left with o todivs of 192241 feet and 8 chord bearing South 26°3 132" West,
307,15 Tt for the placs of beginadig of the land hereinafier deseribed; there eonfioting Southwestesly
212,27 feet along a curve to thelefl with a radius of 192241 feet and s chord hearing South 15°-46°58"
West, 2IL15 feet to the Emterly extension of fle Northery line of Amended Fat of Blocks 1, §, 13 and
16, Late 1,2, 8, 9, i0oFBlock 3, Lot 7 of Blosk 3, Lots 1, 2, 4, 5, 6 of Block 4, Lots 1419 of Blovk 3
Luots 113 of Block 8, Vacated Parts of Bvérait Lane, Maiden Lane, Gallip Avenve, Sanford Streat waek
Robert Lane of fhie Revised Plat of Glendale, s recorded i Liber 42 of Plats on Page 49, Kalamszon
County Records; thonee Merth 89924757 West thereon, 604,74 Feet, thenee North 12%43°-56" West,
150,89 feel: thence Nowth Q045700 Bast, 57.9% feet; theves Bouth §39%-04%5T" Fast, 694,98 foet to ths
plece of beginniag, Couraining 3.0 Acres, movs or less,

537180050368634



EXHIBIT "B" TO RESTRICTIONS

SITE PLAN AND OTHER PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS



Rtas-C

&
o P

_w.mm&a»&.




